
 

 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

 
 

Kern Medical 
1700 Mount Vernon Avenue 

Conference Room 1058 
Bakersfield, California 93306 

 
Regular Meeting 

Wednesday, March 21, 2018 
 
 

11:30 A.M. 
 
 

BOARD TO RECONVENE 
 
 Board Members:  Berjis, Bigler, Lawson, McGauley, McLaughlin, Pelz, Sistrunk 

Roll Call: 
 
CONSENT AGENDA/OPPORTUNITY FOR PUBLIC COMMENT: ALL ITEMS LISTED 
WITH A "CA" ARE CONSIDERED TO BE ROUTINE AND NON-CONTROVERSIAL 
BY KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY STAFF. THE "CA" REPRESENTS THE 
CONSENT AGENDA. CONSENT ITEMS WILL BE CONSIDERED FIRST AND MAY 
BE APPROVED BY ONE MOTION IF NO MEMBER OF THE BOARD OR AUDIENCE 
WISHES TO COMMENT OR ASK QUESTIONS. IF COMMENT OR DISCUSSION IS 
DESIRED BY ANYONE, THE ITEM WILL BE REMOVED FROM THE CONSENT 
AGENDA AND WILL BE CONSIDERED IN LISTED SEQUENCE WITH AN 
OPPORTUNITY FOR ANY MEMBER OF THE PUBLIC TO ADDRESS THE BOARD 
CONCERNING THE ITEM BEFORE ACTION IS TAKEN. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION SHOWN IN CAPS 
 

 



  Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors Agenda                                                   
  Regular Meeting                                                                                                                                     
  3.21.18 
 
 

Page | 2  

 

PUBLIC PRESENTATIONS 
 

1) This portion of the meeting is reserved for persons to address the Board on any matter 
not on this agenda but under the jurisdiction of the Board. Board members may respond 
briefly to statements made or questions posed. They may ask a question for 
clarification, make a referral to staff for factual information or request staff to report 
back to the Board at a later meeting. Also, the Board may take action to direct the staff 
to place a matter of business on a future agenda. SPEAKERS ARE LIMITED TO TWO 
MINUTES. PLEASE STATE AND SPELL YOUR NAME BEFORE MAKING YOUR 
PRESENTATION. THANK YOU! 

 
 

BOARD MEMBER ANNOUNCEMENTS OR REPORTS 
 
2) On their own initiative, Board members may make an announcement or a report on 

their own activities. They may ask a question for clarification, make a referral to staff or 
take action to have staff place a matter of business on a future agenda (Government 
Code section 54954.2(a)(2)) 

 
 

RECOGNITION 
 

3) Presentation by the Chief Executive Officer recognizing the Kern County Hospital 
Authority Board of Governors on its second anniversary –  
MAKE PRESENTATION    

 
 

ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION 
 
CA 
4) Minutes for Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors regular meeting on 

February 21, 2017 –  
APPROVE 
 

5) Proposed reappointment of Director Christina Sistrunk to the Kern County Hospital 
Authority Board of Governors, term to expire June 30, 2021 – 
REFER TO KERN COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS TO MAKE APPOINTMENT 

 
6) Proposed review of Board of Governors vacant position selection process –  

RECEIVE AND FILE 
 
CA 
7) Proposed retroactive Resolution revising the extension of excess medical professional 

liability coverage for Kern Medical employed and independent contractor physicians, 
effective July 1, 2017 –  

 APPROVE; ADOPT RESOLUTION 



  Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors Agenda                                                   
  Regular Meeting                                                                                                                                     
  3.21.18 
 
 

Page | 3  

 

CA 
8) Proposed Memorandum of Understanding with Committee of Interns and 

Residents/Service Employees International Union, Local 1957 expiring March 31, 
2021, with changes to compensation and benefits – 
APPROVE; AUTHORIZE CHAIRMAN TO SIGN; DIRECT HUMAN RESOURCES 
DEPARTMENT TO IMPLEMENT CHANGES 
 

CA 
9) Proposed Agreement with Randolph Fok, M.D., an independent contractor, for 

professional medical services in the Department of Obstetrics and Gynecology from 
April 1, 2018 through March 31, 2020, in an amount not to exceed $600,000 – 

 APPROVE; AUTHORIZE CHAIRMAN TO SIGN SUBJECT TO APPROVAL AS TO 
FORM BY COUNSEL 

 
10) Kern County Hospital Authority Chief Financial Officer report –  
 RECEIVE AND FILE 
 
11) Kern County Hospital Authority Chief Executive Officer report –  
 RECEIVE AND FILE 
 
CA 
12) Claims and Lawsuits Filed as of February 28, 2018 –  

RECEIVE AND FILE 
 
CA 
13) Miscellaneous Correspondence –  

RECEIVE AND FILE 
 
 
ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION 

 
 

CLOSED SESSION 
 

14) Request for Closed Session regarding peer review of health practitioners (Health and 
Safety Code Section 101855(j)(2)) –  

 
15) Request for Closed Session for the purpose of discussion or taking action on authority 

trade secrets (Health and Safety Code Section 101855(e)(1)) – 
 
16) PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION - Title: Chief Executive Officer 

(Government Code Section 54957) – 
 
 
RECONVENE FROM CLOSED SESSION 
 



  Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors Agenda                                                   
  Regular Meeting                                                                                                                                     
  3.21.18 
 
 

Page | 4  

 

REPORT ON ACTIONS TAKEN IN CLOSED SESSION 
 
 
ADJOURN TO WEDNESDAY, APRIL 18, 2018, AT 11:30 A.M. 
 
 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTATION FOR AGENDA ITEMS 
 
All agenda item supporting documentation is available for public review at Kern Medical 
Center in the Administration Department, 1700 Mount Vernon Avenue, Bakersfield, 93306 
during regular business hours, 8:00 a.m. – 5:00 p.m., Monday through Friday, following the 
posting of the agenda.  Any supporting documentation that relates to an agenda item for an 
open session of any regular meeting that is distributed after the agenda is posted and prior to 
the meeting will also be available for review at the same location.   

 
 

AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT 
(Government Code Section 54953.2) 

 

The Kern Medical Center Conference Room is accessible to persons with disabilities. 
Disabled individuals who need special assistance to attend or participate in a meeting of the 
Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors may request assistance at Kern Medical 
Center in the Administration Department, 1700 Mount Vernon Avenue, Bakersfield, California, 
or by calling (661) 326-2102. Every effort will be made to reasonably accommodate individuals 
with disabilities by making meeting material available in alternative formats. Requests for 
assistance should be made five (5) working days in advance of a meeting whenever possible. 
  



  Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors Agenda                                                   
  Regular Meeting                                                                                                                                     
  3.21.18 
 
 

Page | 5  

 

12) CLAIMS AND LAWSUITS FILED AS OF FEBRUARY 28, 2018 – 
RECEIVE AND FILE  
 

A) Summons and Complaint for Damages in the matter of William Dorr, by and through 
his successor-in-interest, Casimir Alexander, et al. v. Kern Medical Center, et al., Kern 
County Superior Court, Case No. BCV-18-100186 TSC  
 

13) MISCELLANEOUS CORRESPONDENCE –  
RECEIVE AND FILE  
 

A) Letter and email from Director Colleen McGauley regarding resignation from the Kern 
County Hospital Authority Board of Governors, effective June 30, 2018 

  



Kern County Hospital Authority
Board of Governors
Major New Programs/Services 
Since Inception of the
Kern County Hospital Authority
Board of Governors – March 2016



Clinical Services
• Butterfly Babies – Cuddle 

Cot
• Call Don’t Fall
• Colon & Rectal Surgery
• Epilepsy Center
• Eye Institute
• GROW Clinic Opening at 

34th Street
• Meds to Beds

• Nephrology Services
• Nitrous Oxide for Pain 

Management
• Nurse Residency Program
• Pet Therapy for Inpatients
• Stroke Program
• UroGynecology Services
• Valley Fever Institute





Education / Outreach Services

• A3 Partnerships
• Car Seat Safety
• Doc for a Day
• Fast Fast Baby Video
• Health for Life Magazine
• Kern County Fair
• Kern Medical Wellness 

Program
• KHSD – Sports Physicals
• No Smoking Campus

• Safe Home Safe Baby
• Sepsy Video
• Simulation Equipment –

Sonosim, Laproscopy
• Stay in the Game
• Stop the Bleed 

Community Education 
• Student Union Ribbon 

Cutting
• Up Sooner Safer





Facilities
• 1058 Remodel
• 2A Remodel
• 3D Temp Nurse Call
• A/B/C & E – Wing HVAC 

Controls
• A-Wing Parking Lot
• B-Wing Roof
• Café Grill Remodel
• D-Wing Air Handlers
• D-Wing Fire Panel
• D-Wing Vacuum Pumps
• Emergency Power to B/C 

Wings
• ER Waiting

• Exterior Lighting LED 
Upgrade

• Family Practice Clinic
• Front Entry Signage
• Generator Overhaul
• Healing Garden @ 

Chemo Infusion
• Infusion Clinic 

Renovation/Relocation
• L & D Renovation
• Outpatient Pharmacy 

Robots
• Pharmacy Sterile Prep 

Area
• Verizon Tower





Financial
• Peoplesoft – Supply Chain & Financial Management
• Strata – Productivity/Planning/Budgeting/Management 

Reporting/Cost Accounting Program

Foundation
• Kern Medical Alumni Society 
• Rebrand & Reorganization of Auxiliary 

(Sips & Snacks, Gift Shop)
• Wonderful Company Grant





HR System
• Clairvia – Nurse Staffing System
• Elsevier – Online Education Program
• KernLink – HR System

Strategy
• Strategic Priorities - Development





 
 
 
 
 

SUMMARY OF PROCEEDINGS 
 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

 
 

Kern Medical 
1700 Mount Vernon Avenue 

Conference Room 1058 
Bakersfield, California 93306 

 
Regular Meeting 

Wednesday, February 21, 2018 
 

11:30 A.M. 
 

BOARD RECONVENED 
 
Directors present: Bigler, Lawson, McGauley, McLaughlin, Pelz (arrived at 11:55 a.m. after the vote on 
the consent agenda and item 4) 
Directors absent: Berjis, Sistrunk 
 
NOTE: The vote is displayed in bold below each item. For example, Lawson-McLaughlin 
denotes Director Lawson made the motion and Vice Chair McLaughlin seconded the motion. 
 
CONSENT AGENDA/OPPORTUNITY FOR PUBLIC COMMENT: ALL ITEMS LISTED WITH 
A "CA" WERE CONSIDERED TO BE ROUTINE AND APPROVED BY ONE MOTION. 

 
BOARD ACTION SHOWN IN CAPS 
 

PUBLIC PRESENTATIONS 
 

1) This portion of the meeting is reserved for persons to address the Board on any matter 
not on this agenda but under the jurisdiction of the Board. Board members may respond 
briefly to statements made or questions posed. They may ask a question for 
clarification, make a referral to staff for factual information or request staff to report 
back to the Board at a later meeting. Also, the Board may take action to direct the staff 
to place a matter of business on a future agenda. SPEAKERS ARE LIMITED TO TWO 
MINUTES. PLEASE STATE AND SPELL YOUR NAME BEFORE MAKING YOUR 
PRESENTATION. THANK YOU! 

 



  Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors  
  Regular Meeting – Summary of Proceedings                                                                                       
  2.21.18 
 
 

Page | 2  
 

DOMINIC BROWN, ACTING EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR, KERN COUNTY 
EMPLOYEES’ RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION, HEARD REGARDING HIS 
WILLINGNESS TO ASSIST THE BOARD WITH ANY QUESTIONS OR CONCERNS 
RELATED TO THE RETIREMENT PLAN 

  
BOARD MEMBER ANNOUNCEMENTS OR REPORTS 

 
2) On their own initiative, Board members may make an announcement or a report on 

their own activities. They may ask a question for clarification, make a referral to staff or 
take action to have staff place a matter of business on a future agenda (Government 
Code section 54954.2(a)(2)) 
 
NO ONE HEARD 

 
ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION 

 
CA 
3) Minutes for Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors regular meeting on 

January 18, 2018 –  
APPROVED 

 Lawson-McGauley: 4 Ayes; 3 Absent - Berjis, Pelz, Sistrunk 
 

4) Proposed Report of Independent Auditors from Moss-Adams LLP, an independent 
contractor, regarding the audit of Kern Medical Center financial statements for the year 
ending June 30, 2017 – 
RECEIVED AND FILED; REFERED TO KERN COUNTY BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
McLaughlin-Lawson: 4 Ayes; 3 Absent - Berjis, Pelz, Sistrunk 

 
5) Proposed update regarding the California section 1115 Medi-Cal 2020 Demonstration 

Waiver specific to the Kern Medical Center Whole Person Care Pilot program –  
RECEIVED AND FILED 
Pelz-McLaughlin: 5 Ayes; 2 Absent - Berjis, Sistrunk 
 

CA 
6) Proposed 2017 Achievement Award from state of California Health and Human 

Services Agency for meeting or exceeding the Healthy People 2020 target for low-risk, 
first-birth cesarean deliveries –  
RECEIVED AND FILED 
Lawson-McGauley: 4 Ayes; 3 Absent - Berjis, Pelz, Sistrunk 
 

CA 
7) Proposed 2017 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report and 2017 Actuarial Valuation 

from Kern County Employees’ Retirement Association –  
 RECEIVED AND FILED 
 Lawson-McGauley: 4 Ayes; 3 Absent - Berjis, Pelz, Sistrunk 
 



  Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors  
  Regular Meeting – Summary of Proceedings                                                                                       
  2.21.18 
 
 

Page | 3  
 

 
CA  
8) Proposed retroactive Amendment No. 10 to Agreement 042-2015 with Cantu 

Management Group, Inc., an independent contractor, for Chief Financial Officer and 
healthcare financial management services, revising the methodology for the monthly 
staffing fee for additional staff from hourly rates plus 44% to hourly rates plus a 
percentage of costs (benefits and expenses) not to exceed 44%, and increasing the 
maximum payable by $7,500,000, from $30,038,240 to $37,538,240, effective January 
1, 2018 –  

 APPROVED; AUTHORIZED CHAIRMAN TO SIGN AGREEMENT 006-2018 
 Lawson-McGauley: 4 Ayes; 3 Absent - Berjis, Pelz, Sistrunk 
 
CA 
9) Proposed retroactive Amended and Restated Membership Agreement with California 

Perinatal Quality Care Collaborative (CPQCC), an independent contractor, containing 
nonstandard terms and conditions, for statewide reporting and collection of hospital-
level performance data on California maternal and neonatal care from December 1, 
2017 through November 20, 2020, in an amount not to exceed $30,000 –  

 APPROVED; AUTHORIZED CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER TO SIGN AGREEMENT 
007-2018 

 Lawson-McGauley: 4 Ayes; 3 Absent - Berjis, Pelz, Sistrunk 
 
CA 
10) Proposed Agreement with Arturo Gomez, M.D., a contract employee, for professional 

medical services in the Department of Surgery, Division of Orthopedic Surgery from 
March 16, 2018 through March 15, 2021, in an amount not to exceed $3,690,000 – 
APPROVED; AUTHORIZED CHAIRMAN TO SIGN AGREEMENT 008-2018 
Lawson-McGauley: 4 Ayes; 3 Absent - Berjis, Pelz, Sistrunk  
 

CA 
11) Proposed retroactive Statement of Commitment to Graduate Medical Education in 

support of residency and fellowship training programs sponsored by Kern Medical 
Center, as required by Accreditation Council for Graduate Medical Education, effective 
July 1, 2016 – 

 APPROVED; AUTHORIZED CHAIRMAN TO SIGN  
 Lawson-McGauley: 4 Ayes; 3 Absent - Berjis, Pelz, Sistrunk 
 
CA 
12) Proposed retroactive Change Order No. 1 to Agreement 077-2017 with James E. 

Thompson, Inc., doing business as JTS Construction, an independent contractor, for 
construction management services related to the NOC IT hub project at Sagebrush 
Medical Plaza, increasing the maximum payable by $3,756, from $717,500 to 
$721,256, to cover the cost of additional services –  

  
 



  Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors  
  Regular Meeting – Summary of Proceedings                                                                                       
  2.21.18 
 
 

Page | 4  
 

MADE FINDING PROJECT IS EXEMPT FROM FURTHER CEQA REVIEW PER 
SECTIONS 15301 AND 15061(b)(3) OF STATE CEQA GUIDELINES; APPROVED; 
AUTHORIZED CHAIRMAN TO SIGN AGREEMENT 009-2018; AUTHORIZED CHIEF 
EXECUTIVE OFFICER TO APPROVE ANY FUTURE CHANGE ORDERS IN AN 
AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED 10% OF THE TOTAL CONTRACT PRICE OR $789,250 

 Lawson-McGauley: 4 Ayes; 3 Absent - Berjis, Pelz, Sistrunk 
 
CA 
13) Proposed retroactive Agreement with MedHub, LLC, an independent contractor, 

containing nonstandard terms and conditions, for purchase of E*Value software license 
and maintenance to support graduate medical education from November 10, 2017 
through November 9, 2020, in an amount not to exceed $250,000 – 

 APPROVED; AUTHORIZED CHAIRMAN TO SIGN AGREEMENT 010-2018; 
AUTHORIZED CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER TO SIGN SALES ORDERS TOTALING 
AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $250,000 

 Lawson-McGauley: 4 Ayes; 3 Absent - Berjis, Pelz, Sistrunk 
 
CA 
14) Proposed Agreement with Siemens Healthcare Diagnostics Inc., an independent 

contractor, containing nonstandard terms and conditions, for the acquisition of three 
chemistry analyzers and purchase of equipment service and support, reagents, 
consumables, and supplies from March 1, 2018 through February 28, 2025, in an 
amount not to exceed $2,826,913 –  

 APPROVED; AUTHORIZED CHAIRMAN TO SIGN AGREEMENT 011-2018 
 Lawson-McGauley: 4 Ayes; 3 Absent - Berjis, Pelz, Sistrunk 
 
CA 
15) Proposed Agreement with Hitachi Capital America Corp., an independent contractor, 

containing nonstandard terms and conditions, for capital lease with option to purchase 
three chemistry analyzers from Siemens Healthcare Diagnostics Inc., an independent 
contractor, for a term of 60 months commencing upon receipt of equipment, in an 
amount not to exceed $534,332 –  

 APPROVED; AUTHORIZED CHAIRMAN TO SIGN AGREEMENT 012-2018; 
AUTHORIZED CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER TO SIGN SUPPORTING 
DOCUMENTATION 

 Lawson-McGauley: 4 Ayes; 3 Absent - Berjis, Pelz, Sistrunk 
 
CA 
16) Proposed Agreement with Charter Communications Operating, LLC on behalf of its 

operating subsidiary Spectrum, an independent contractor, containing nonstandard 
terms and conditions, for purchase of cable TV, phone, internet and related services, 
effective February 21, 2018 – 

 APPROVED; AUTHORIZED CHAIRMAN TO SIGN AGREEMENT 013-2018; 
AUTHORIZED CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER TO SIGN SERVICE ORDERS EACH 
TOTALING AN AMOUNT NOT TO EXCEED $250,000 

 Lawson-McGauley: 4 Ayes; 3 Absent - Berjis, Pelz, Sistrunk 



  Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors  
  Regular Meeting – Summary of Proceedings                                                                                       
  2.21.18 
 
 

Page | 5  
 

 
CA 
17) Proposed retroactive Resolution revising the authority of Counsel to contract for expert 

legal services for claims and litigation management, effective January 1, 2018 –  
 APPROVED; ADOPTED RESOLUTION 2018-003 
 Lawson-McGauley: 4 Ayes; 3 Absent - Berjis, Pelz, Sistrunk 
 
18) Kern County Hospital Authority Chief Financial Officer report –  

RECEIVED AND FILED 
Lawson-McGauley: 5 Ayes; 2 Absent - Berjis, Sistrunk 
 

19) Kern County Hospital Authority Chief Executive Officer report –  
RECEIVED AND FILED 
Pelz-McGauley: 5 Ayes; 2 Absent - Berjis, Sistrunk 

 
CA 
20) Claims and Lawsuits Filed as of January 31, 2018 –  

RECEIVED AND FILED 
Lawson-McGauley: 4 Ayes; 3 Absent - Berjis, Pelz, Sistrunk 

 
ADJOURNED TO CLOSED SESSION 
McGauley-Pelz 

 
CLOSED SESSION 

 
21) Request for Closed Session regarding peer review of health practitioners (Health and 

Safety Code Section 101855(j)(2)) – SEE RESULTS BELOW 
 
22) CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - ANTICIPATED LITIGATION  

(Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(2), (e)(2).) Number of cases: One (1) 
Significant exposure to litigation in the opinion of the Board of Governors on the advice 
of legal counsel, based on: Facts and circumstances, including, but not limited to, an 
accident, disaster, incident, or transactional occurrence that might result in litigation 
against the Authority and that are known to a potential plaintiff or plaintiffs – SEE 
RESULTS BELOW 

 
23) Request for Closed Session for the purpose of discussion or taking action on authority 

trade secrets (Health and Safety Code Section 101855(e)(1)) – SEE RESULTS 
BELOW 

 
24) CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS - Agency designated representatives: 

Chief Executive Officer Russell V. Judd, and designated staff - Employee 
organizations: Service Employees International Union, Local 521 (Government Code 
Section 54957.6) – SEE RESULTS BELOW 

 
 



  Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors  
  Regular Meeting – Summary of Proceedings                                                                                       
  2.21.18 
 
 

Page | 6  
 

25) CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - EXISTING LITIGATION 
(Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1)) Name of case: Hadie Vanessa Alvarez v. 
County of Kern, et al., Kern County Superior Court, Case No. BCV-15-101754 TSC – 
SEE RESULTS BELOW 

 
26) CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - EXISTING LITIGATION  

(Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1)) Name of case: Service Employees 
International Union, Local 521 v. County of Kern, et al., Public Employment Relations 
Board, Case No. LA-CE-1084-M – SEE RESULTS BELOW 
 

27) CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - EXISTING LITIGATION  
(Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1)) Name of case: Brandy Hernandez aka 
Brandy Desrocher, an individual v. County of Kern, et al., Kern County Superior Court, 
Case No. BCV-17-102820 SDS – SEE RESULTS BELOW 

 
28) PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION - Title: Chief Executive Officer 

(Government Code Section 54957) – SEE RESULTS BELOW 
 
RECONVENED FROM CLOSED SESSION 
Lawson-Pelz 
 
REPORT ON ACTIONS TAKEN IN CLOSED SESSION 
 
 Item No. 21 concerning Request for Closed Session regarding peer review of health 

practitioners (Health and Safety Code Section 101855(j)(2)) – HEARD; BY A 
UNANIMOUS VOTE OF THOSE DIRECTORS PRESENT (MOTION BY DIRECTOR 
LAWSON, SECOND BY DIRECTOR MCGAULEY; 2 ABSENT - DIRECTORS BERJIS 
AND SISTRUNK), THE BOARD APPROVED ALL PROVIDERS RECOMMENDED 
FOR INITIAL APPOINTMENT, REAPPOINTMENT, REVIEW AND RELEASE OF 
PROCTORING, CHANGE IN STAFF STATUS, VOLUNTARY RESIGNATION OF 
PRIVILEGES, AND AUTOMATIC TERMINATION OF PRIVILEGES; NO OTHER 
REPORTABLE ACTION TAKEN 

 
 Item No. 22 concerning CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - ANTICIPATED 

LITIGATION (Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(2), (e)(2).) Number of cases: One 
(1) Significant exposure to litigation in the opinion of the Board of Governors on the 
advice of legal counsel, based on: Facts and circumstances, including, but not limited 
to, an accident, disaster, incident, or transactional occurrence that might result in 
litigation against the Authority and that are known to a potential plaintiff or plaintiffs –  
HEARD; NO REPORTABLE ACTION TAKEN 

 
 Item No. 23 concerning Request for Closed Session for the purpose of discussion or 

taking action on authority trade secrets (Health and Safety Code Section 101855(e)(1)) 
– HEARD; NO REPORTABLE ACTION TAKEN 

 
  



  Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors  
  Regular Meeting – Summary of Proceedings                                                                                       
  2.21.18 
 
 

Page | 7  
 

Item No. 24 concerning CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATORS - Agency 
designated representatives: Chief Executive Officer Russell V. Judd, and designated 
staff - Employee organizations: Service Employees International Union, Local 521 
(Government Code Section 54957.6) – HEARD; NO REPORTABLE ACTION TAKEN 

 
 Item No. 25 concerning CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - EXISTING 

LITIGATION (Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1)) Name of case: Hadie Vanessa 
Alvarez v. County of Kern, et al., Kern County Superior Court, Case No. BCV-15-
101754 TSC – HEARD; NO REPORTABLE ACTION TAKEN 

 
 Item No. 26 concerning CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - EXISTING 

LITIGATION (Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1)) Name of case: Service 
Employees International Union, Local 521 v. County of Kern, et al., Public Employment 
Relations Board, Case No. LA-CE-1084-M – HEARD; NO REPORTABLE ACTION 
TAKEN 
 

 Item No. 27 concerning CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - EXISTING 
LITIGATION (Government Code Section 54956.9(d)(1)) Name of case: Brandy 
Hernandez aka Brandy Desrocher, an individual v. County of Kern, et al., Kern County 
Superior Court, Case No. BCV-17-102820 SDS – HEARD; NO REPORTABLE 
ACTION TAKEN 

 
 Item No. 28 concerning PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION - Title: 

Chief Executive Officer (Government Code Section 54957) – HEARD; NO 
REPORTABLE ACTION TAKEN 

 
 
ADJOURN TO WEDNESDAY, MARCH 21, 2018, AT 11:30 A.M. 
Pelz 
 
 
 
/s/ Mona A. Allen 

Authority Board Coordinator 
 
 
 
/s/ Russell E. Bigler 

Chairman, Board of Governors 
Kern County Hospital Authority  

 
 



 
 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 
A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS 
KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 

 
March 21, 2018 
 

Subject:  Proposed reappointment of Director Christina Sistrunk to the Kern County Hospital 

Authority Board of Governors, term to expire June 30, 2021 
  

Recommended Action:  Refer to Kern County Board of Supervisors to make appointment  

  

Summary:    
  
Director Christina Sistrunk was appointed to the Board of Governors for an initial term of two years.  Her term 
expires June 30, 2018.  Members may serve an unlimited number of terms if reappointed by the Kern County 
Board of Supervisors. 
 
Director Sistrunk, as required by the authority’s Bylaws for Governance, has notified Chairman Bigler in writing 
of her intent to seek reappointment to the Board of Governors.  She is not required to submit a new application 
for reappointment.  The Bylaws requires your Board to notify the Board of Supervisors of a member’s intent to 
continue to serve on the Board of Governors.   
 
Therefore, it is recommended that your Board refer this item to the Kern County Board of Supervisors to make 
the appointment of Director Sistrunk for a three‐year term expiring June 30, 2021. 
 





 
 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 
A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

 
BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 
 
March 21, 2018 
 
Subject:  Proposed review of Board of Governors vacant position selection process 
  
Recommended Action:  Receive and file  
  
Summary:  The enabling ordinance and the hospital authority’s Bylaws for Governance provide the process by 
which an individual is appointed to the Board of Governors.  The following will provide your Board with a brief 
overview of the selection process for filling any vacancy occurring on the Board of Governors.  All appointments 
to the Board of Governors are made by the Kern County Board of Supervisors. 
 
Qualifications –  

 Desired qualifications include experience with business management, strategic planning, finance, public 
health policy, healthcare administration, medical services, and consensus building 

 Specific qualifications include knowledge of health care delivery systems, health care policy, regulatory 
issues, and human resources in large organizations, an understanding of budgeting process, revenue 
cycle, financial reports, and basis accounting principles, and experience managing hospital services and 
understanding of the health care needs of the hospital authority’s patient populations 
 

Applications –  

 All applicants must complete an application and a security clearance consent form 

 Applications are accepted from all eligible persons 

 Completed applications of all qualified applicants are submitted to the Board of Supervisors at least 30 
days prior to the scheduled meeting of the Board of Supervisors to consider appointment 

 
Selection –  

 The Board of Governors forwards to the Board of Supervisors all applications received by all qualified 
applicants to fill any vacancy 

 The Board of Supervisors may consider any such application to fill a vacancy  

 The Board of Governors may make recommendations to the Board of Supervisors from the pool of 
qualified applicants 

 The Board of Supervisors shall consider qualified applicants but is not bound to appoint any such 
individual 

 The Board of Supervisors may only appoint qualified individuals who have formally applied for 
membership on the Board of Governors and have passed security clearance 

 The Board of Supervisors may make an appointment from the pool of qualified applicants or request the 
submission of additional candidates to fill the vacancy 

 Each member of the Board of Supervisors casts a ballot with one vote for each vacancy 

 A candidate receiving a majority of all votes shall be appointed to the Board of Governors 
 
 



 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 
A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS 
KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 

 
March 21, 2018 
 

Subject: Proposed Retroactive Resolution Revising the Extension of Excess Medical Professional 
Liability Coverage to Kern Medical Employed and Independent Contractor Physicians 

   

Recommended Action: Approve; Adopt Resolution 
   

Summary: 
 

The  Kern  County  Hospital  Authority  provides  professional  liability  coverage  in  the  form  of 
indemnification for all claims relating to the professional medical services rendered on behalf of 
the  Authority;  provided,  however,  that  the  indemnification  does  not  extend  to  any  services 
rendered at any location other than Kern Medical and its affiliated clinics without approval of 
your Board. Effective July 1, 2017, the Authority has self‐insured the first $2,000,000 per medical 
incident or occurrence and has purchased umbrella coverage of $25,000,000 in excess of the self‐
insured retention. 
 

On  September  21,  2016,  your  Board  adopted  Resolution  No.  2016‐018,  which  revised  the 
extension of excess professional liability coverage to Kern Medical employed and independent 
contractor physicians at specific authorized off‐site locations. Kern Medical is recommending the 
following to be added to the list of authorized off‐site locations, effective July 1, 2017.  
 

 Southern California Orthopedic Institute 

 Bakersfield Specialists Surgical Center, LLC  

 Kern Medical Surgery Center, LLC 
 

Extending  excess  medical  professional  liability  coverage  to  employed  and  independent 
contractor physicians at the additional off‐site locations will enable the physicians to generate 
additional revenue for Kern Medical and will provide Kern Medical the opportunity to care for 
patients and continue to build its reputation as a hospital of excellence. There is no added cost 
to the Authority’s medical professional liability program to extend the requested coverage. 
 

The  Authority  will  administer/submit  claims,  if  any,  in  excess  of  the  $2,000,000  self‐insured 
retention to CNA, the Authority’s excess medical professional liability carrier. 
 

Therefore,  it  is  recommended  that  your Board  retroactively  approve and adopt  the  attached 
resolution revising the extension of excess medical professional liability coverage for employed 
and independent contractor physicians, when providing professional medical services on behalf 
of Kern Medical at the facilities listed in the resolution, effective July 1, 2017. 



BEFORE THE BOARD OF GOVERNORS 
OF THE KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 

_________________ 
 
 
In the matter of:                   Resolution No. __________ 
 
REVISED EXTENSION OF EXCESS MEDICAL 
PROFESSIONAL LIABILITY COVERAGE 
FOR KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 
EMPLOYED AND INDEPENDENT  
CONTRACTOR PHYSICIANS 
_____________________________________ 
 
 I, MONA A. ALLEN, Authority Board Coordinator for the Kern County Hospital 
Authority, hereby certify that the following Resolution, on motion of Director __________, 
seconded by Director __________, was duly and regularly adopted by the Board of 
Governors of the Kern County Hospital Authority at an official meeting thereof on the 21st 
day of March, 2018, by the following vote, and that a copy of the Resolution has been 
delivered to the Chairman of the Board of Governors.  
 
AYES:   
 
NOES:   
 
ABSENT:   
 
                  MONA A. ALLEN  

                 Authority Board Coordinator 
  Kern County Hospital Authority  

          
 
                ____________________________ 
                Mona A. Allen             
 
             

 
RESOLUTION 

 
Section 1.  WHEREAS: 

   
(a) The Kern County Hospital Authority (“Authority”) provides professional 

liability coverage in the form of indemnification for all claims relating to the services 
rendered on behalf of the Authority; provided, however, that the indemnification does not 
extend to any services rendered at any location other than Kern Medical Center and its 
affiliated clinics without approval of the Board of Governors; and  



Page 2 of 3 
 

 (b) On June 22, 2016, the Board of Governors adopted Resolution No. 2016-
012, which extended excess professional liability coverage to Kern Medical Center 
employed and independent contractor physicians at specific authorized off-site locations; 
and 
  

(c) On September 21, 2016, the Board of Governors adopted Resolution No. 
2016-018, which revised the extension of excess professional liability coverage to include 
Millennium Surgery Center, Physicians Plaza Surgical Center, Northwest Surgery Center, 
and Southwest Surgical Center to the list of authorized off-site locations; and 

 
 (d) Kern Medical is recommending Southern California Orthopedic Institute, 
Bakersfield Specialists Surgical Center, LLC, and Kern Medical Surgery Center, LLC to 
be added to the list of authorized off-site locations; and 
  

(e) Extending excess medical professional liability coverage to employed and 
independent contractor physicians at these additional off-site locations will enable the 
physicians to generate additional revenue for Kern Medical Center and will provide Kern 
Medical Center the opportunity to care for patients and continue to build its reputation as a 
hospital of excellence; and 
  

(f) The Authority has self-insured the first $2,000,000 per medical incident or 
occurrence and has purchased umbrella coverage of $25,000,000 in excess of the self-
insured retention; and 

 
 (g) There is no added cost to the Authority’s medical professional liability 
program to extend the requested coverage to these off-site locations; and 
 
 (h) The Authority will administer/submit claims, if any, in excess of the self-
insured retention to CNA, the Authority’s excess medical professional liability carrier; 
 
 Section 2.  NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY RESOLVED by the Board of 
Governors of the Kern County Hospital Authority, as follows: 
 

1. This Board finds the facts recited herein are true, and further finds that this 
Board has jurisdiction to consider, approve, and adopt the subject of this Resolution. 
 

2. This Board finds the best interests of the Authority shall be served by 
extending excess medical professional liability coverage to Kern Medical Center employed 
and independent contractor physicians at the following authorized off-site locations: 

 
  (a) Comprehensive Blood and Cancer Center; 
  (b) Mercy Hospital; 
  (c) Bakersfield Memorial Hospital; 
  (d) San Joaquin Community Hospital; 
  (e) Bakersfield Heart Hospital; 
  (f) Millennium Surgery Center; 



Page 3 of 3 
 

  (g) Physicians Plaza Surgical Center; 
  (h) Northwest Surgery Center; 
  (i) Southwest Surgery Center; 
  (j) Bahamas Surgery Center; 
  (k) Clinica Sierra Vista; 
  (l) Southern California Orthopedic Institute;  
  (m) Bakersfield Specialists Surgical Center, LLC; 
  (n) Kern Medical Surgery Center, LLC; 

(o) Kern County owned and operated correctional facilities; 
(p) Behavioral Health and Recovery Services (f/k/a Kern County 

Mental Health; and 
  (q) Facilities owned or leased and operated by the Authority. 

 
3. The provisions of this Resolution shall be effective, in force, and operative 

as of the 1st day of July, 2017. 
 
4. Resolution No. 2016-018, adopted by the Board of Governors on September 

21, 2016, is hereby repealed and superseded by this Resolution. 
 
5. The Authority Board Coordinator shall provide copies of this Resolution to 

the following: 
 

  Kern Medical Center 
  Chief Executive Officer 
  Chief Financial Officer 
  Chief Strategy Officer 
  Legal Services Department 
  Workers’ Compensation & Liability Manager 
  Columbia Casualty Company (CNA) 
  Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. 
   



 
 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 

A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS 
KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 

  

March 21, 2018 
  

Subject:  Proposed Memorandum of Understanding with Committee of Interns and Residents/Service 

Employees International Union, Local 1957 expiring March 31, 2021 with changes to compensation and benefits  
 

Recommended Action:  Approve; Authorize Chairman to sign; Direct Human Resources Department to 

implement changes 
 

Summary:  The Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) with Committee of Residents and Interns/Service 

Employees International Union, Local 1957 (CIR/SEIU), covering the interns, residents, and fellows appointed to 
Kern Medical’s graduate medical education programs, expires June 30, 2018.  In anticipation of the expiration of 
the current MOU on June 30, representatives of the Kern County Hospital Authority (Authority) met with 
representatives of CIR/SEIU to negotiate terms and conditions for a new MOU.   
 
The current MOU was negotiated by the County of Kern and required numerous revisions in language to 
accurately reflect the terms and conditions between the Authority and CIR/SEIU.   These revisions have been 
negotiated and agreed to by both parties as indicated in the proposed MOU.  In addition, there are several 
material changes to the term, compensation and benefits.  Those changes are as follows: 

 
TERM:  A 36-month term commencing March 31, 2018, and expiring March 31, 2021.  The Authority has agreed 
to a wage-only opener 45 days after ratification of the new MOU with SEIU, Local 521, anticipated to be 
completed by June 30, 2018. 
 
COMPENSATION: 
Educational Fund: An Educational Fund will be established for each resident in the amount of $1,000 per 
academic year (July 1-June 30), which will be prorated for the period March 31, 2018-June 30, 2018.  Residents 
may request reimbursement from this fund for educational expenses as outlined in the MOU.  Unused amounts 
may be carried over year to year as long as the resident is actively employed by the Authority as a resident.  
Upon completion of training, credit balances, if any, will be forfeited.    
Licensure Fees:  The Authority agrees to pay the professional license fees for residents while they are in training 
at Kern Medical. 
Meal Allowance:  The Authority agrees to increase the current biweekly meal allowance from $147.18 to 
$164.71. 
 

BENEFITS: 
Disability Insurance:  The Authority agrees to pay $12.00 per month per resident for the purchase of disability 
insurance sponsored by CIR/SEIU. 
 
Therefore, it is recommended that your Board approve and authorize the Chairman to sign the Memorandum of 
Understanding with Committee of Residents and Interns/Service Employees International Union, Local 1957, 
covering the interns, residents, and fellows in Kern Medical’s graduate medical education programs, from March 
31, 2018 through March 31, 2021, and direct the Human Resources Department to implement the changes. 



1 of 23 

PREAMBLE 
 

This Memorandum of Understanding (“MOU”), entered into by the Kern County Hospital Authority (the 
“Authority”), which owns and operates Kern Medical Center (“KMC”), and Committee of Interns and 
Residents/Service Employees International Union Local 1957 (“CIR/SEIU”), has as its purpose the setting 
forth of the full and entire understanding of the parties regarding the matters set forth herein, reached as the 
result of good faith negotiations regarding the wages, hours, and other terms and conditions of employment of 
the resident physicians covered hereby.  Pursuant to Government Code section 3505.1, this MOU is jointly 
submitted and recommended for approval, and implemented in accordance with its terms, to the Kern County 
Hospital Authority Board of Governors. 
 

ARTICLE I – RECOGNITION 
 
Section 1. Union Recognition 
 

On January 12, 2010, CIR/SEIU was approved and certified by the Kern County Board of Supervisors 
as the exclusive bargaining representative of all interns, residents, and fellows (“resident physicians”) 
employed by the County of Kern on behalf of KMC.  The Authority continues to recognize CIR/SEIU 
as the exclusive bargaining representative of all resident physicians employed by the Authority, 
pursuant to Health and Safety Code section 101853.1(d)(1).    

 
Section 2. Full Understanding; Modifications; Waiver 
 

This MOU sets forth the full and entire understanding of the parties regarding the specific matters set 
forth herein and any other prior or existing oral or written understandings or agreements by the parties, 
whether formal or informal, regarding any such matters are hereby superseded or terminated in their 
entirety. 

 
Except as specifically provided herein, it is agreed and understood that each party hereto voluntarily 
and unqualifiedly waives its right and agrees that the other shall not be required to negotiate with 
respect to any subject or matter covered herein, during the term of this MOU. 

 
No agreement, alteration, understanding, variation, waiver, or modification of any terms or provisions 
contained herein shall in any manner be binding upon the parties hereto unless made and executed in 
writing by the parties hereto, and approved by the Kern County Hospital Authority Board of 
Governors. 

 
Waiver of any violation of this MOU, or failure to enforce any of its terms shall not constitute a waiver 
of the right to future enforcement of any of its terms. 

 
Section 3. Authorized Agents 
 

For the purposes of administering the terms and provisions of this MOU: 
 
A. The Authority’s principal authorized agent shall be the Chief Executive Officer or his/her duly 

authorized representative (Address: 1700 Mount Vernon Avenue, Bakersfield, California 
93306; Telephone (661) 326-2102), except where a particular Authority representative is 
specifically designated in connection with the performance of a specified function or 
obligation set forth herein. 

 



2 of 23 

B. CIR/SEIU’s principal authorized agent shall be the President of CIR/SEIU Local 1957 or 
his/her duly authorized representative (Address: 1545 Wilshire Boulevard, Suite B02, Los 
Angeles, California 90017; Telephone (213) 628-3342). 

 
Section 4. Status 

 
Notwithstanding any other provision of this MOU, CIR/SEIU acknowledges and agrees that the 
resident physicians are appointed as physicians-in-training in graduate medical education training 
programs sponsored by KMC (individually and collectively, the “Program”) and that this MOU does 
not confer upon any resident physician a benefit, promise, or other commitment that they will be 
appointed for a period beyond the date set forth in their individual Graduate Medical Education 
Agreement. 

 
 

ARTICLE II – GENERAL PROVISIONS 
 
Section 1. Dues and Union Security 
 

All resident physicians covered by this MOU shall, as a condition of employment, either: 
 

A. Become and remain members of CIR/SEIU in good standing during the term of their 
employment, it being understood that membership in good standing on the part of a resident 
physician shall mean the tender by such resident physician, of the periodic dues uniformly 
required as a condition of employment; or 
 

B. Pay an agency fee to CIR/SEIU.  
 
No discrimination or reprisal shall be visited against any such resident physician by either party based 
upon membership or non-membership in CIR/SEIU. 

  
CIR/SEIU shall have the exclusive right to the check-off and transmittal of dues and agency fees on 
behalf of each resident physician in the unit, said dues and agency fees to be checked off monthly from 
the paycheck of each resident physician, pursuant to the directive of CIR/SEIU, in such amounts as 
CIR/SEIU shall establish.  The Authority agrees to forward said dues and agency fees by the 15th day 
of the month after they are collected. 
 
Any Resident physicians who have authorized union dues deductions on or before the effective date 
of this MOU or at any time subsequent to the effective date of this MOU, shall continue to have such 
dues deduction made by the Authority during the term of this MOU; provided, however, that Resident 
physicians may terminate such union dues deduction each year during the period August 1 to August 
15 by notifying CIR/SEIU of their termination of union dues deduction.  Such notification shall be my 
US mail and should be in the form of a letter containing the following information:  employee name, 
employee number, job classification, and department name.  CIR/SEIU will provide the Authority with 
the appropriate documentation to process these dues cancellations within ten (10) business days after 
the close of the withdrawal period. 

  
The Authority agrees to a union dues check-off system whereby dues, as certified by the CIR/SEIU to 
be current, will be deducted and paid to CIR/SEIU, subject to the provision of the County of Kern 
Employer-Employee Relations Resolution (“EERR”), or any successor Employer-Employee Relations 
Resolution adopted by the Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors. 

 



3 of 23 

CIR/SEIU agrees to pay a service fee to the Authority for payroll deduction for union dues, or other 
assessments.  The payroll deduction service fee shall be five cents ($0.05) per deduction per biweekly 
payroll period.  

  
By May 31 of each year, KMC shall forward to CIR/SEIU a list of all confirmed resident physicians 
in the bargaining unit, compiled from the KMC’s records, which list shall include designation by post-
graduate years, fellowship titles, personal email addresses, if any, and home or mailing addresses, 
assuming this information is available at that time.  No later than June 30 of each year or when all pre-
employment requirements have been successfully completed, whichever occurs first, CIR/SEIU shall 
receive a list of all incoming resident physicians, including their names, departments, employee 
identification numbers, work email addresses, and work telephone numbers.  
 

Section 2. Agency Fee 
 

A. Scope – Each resident physician hired into Bargaining Unit Z shall, either (1) become a 
member of CIR/SEIU to the extent of rendering periodic dues uniformly required for 
membership, or (2) pay to the CIR/SEIU a biweekly representational fee. Such 
representational fee shall be an amount uniformly established by the CIR/SEIU. 

 
B. Indemnification – CIR/SEIU shall indemnify the Authority and hold it harmless against any 

and all suits, claims, demands or other liabilities, including the Authority’s reasonable 
attorneys’ fees, that may arise out of or by reason of any action taken by the Authority for 
purposes of complying with this Section 2. 

 
C. Challenges – Challenges to the Agency Fee shall be addressed as set forth in the California 

Public Sector Representation Fee Notice provided by CIR/SEIU. 
 
D. Agency Fees and the challenges thereto shall not be subject to Article VIII, Grievance and 

Arbitration Procedure. 
 
Section 3. Political Action Check-Off 
 

Upon receipt of written authorization from a resident physician in a form submitted by CIR/SEIU, and 
warranted by it to comply with all applicable laws and regulations, the Authority shall, on a biweekly 
basis and pursuant to such authorization, deduct from the wages due the resident physician the sum 
specified in said authorization.  The Authority will remit the authorized amount to a fund established, 
pursuant to applicable law, to receive contributions to be used for political purposes.  

 
It is specifically understood and agreed that the Authority assumes no obligation, financial or 
otherwise, arising out of the provisions of this Article, and CIR/SEIU agrees that it will indemnify and 
hold the Authority harmless for any claims, judgments, actions, or proceedings made or brought by 
any resident physician(s) arising from deductions made by the Authority pursuant to this Article or the 
expenditure of such funds by CIR/SEIU.  After deductions are remitted to CIR/SEIU, the disposition 
thereof shall be the sole and exclusive obligation and responsibility of CIR/SEIU.  It is further 
understood and agreed that the Authority’s performance under this Article is not an endorsement of 
any expenditure on the part of CIR/SEIU. 

  



4 of 23 

Section 4. Safety and Security 
 
The Authority shall provide a healthy and safe work environment for resident physicians and comply with 
local, state and federal health and safety laws.   
 

A. Personal Protection/Infection Control and Precautions - Resident physicians shall adhere to all 
KMC infectious disease policies and protocols which may be revised from time to time. 

 
B. Personal Safety - In conjunction with the annual call room walk-through as outlined in Article 

III, CIR/SEIU and the Authority shall conduct an annual safety and security walk-through to 
identify and address any security issues or concerns of the resident physicians.  After the walk-
through is completed, CIR/SEIU and the Department of Medical Education or designee shall 
generate a report of any issues or concerns regarding safety and security and present it to the 
KMC Director of Security.  In addition to the walk-through, any security concerns shall be 
addressed in meetings of the Resident Advisory Council. 

 
Section 5. Direct Deposit 
 

The Authority shall require that all resident physicians receive their pay and qualified expense 
reimbursement via direct deposit. 

 
Section 6. Issuance of Certificates 
 

Each resident physician shall, upon satisfactory completion of the Program and satisfaction of the 
Program’s requirements and the responsibilities contained herein, receive a Certificate of Completion 
within one month of completion of the Program.   

 
Section 7. Library 
 

The Authority shall provide and maintain medical library services as outlined in the Resident Policy 
Manual and in accordance with the Accreditation Council for Graduate Medical Education 
(“ACGME”) guidelines. 

 
Section 8. Return of Materials 
 

At the time of termination from the Program or in the event of termination of the Program, resident 
physicians shall: (a) return all KMC property, including, without limitation, books, equipment, keys, 
pagers, paper, personal digital assistant (PDA) and uniforms; (b) complete all necessary records; and 
(c) settle all professional and financial obligations. 

 
Section 9. Fitness 
 

Subsequent to the commencement date of the individual Graduate Medical Education Agreements, 
resident physicians shall submit to periodic (post-appointment) health examinations and tests, which 
may include tests for drug use or alcohol abuse, as are deemed necessary by the Program to ensure that 
the resident physician is physically, mentally, and emotionally capable of performing essential duties 
or are otherwise necessary to the operation of the Program.  Resident physicians agree to meet 
applicable standards for immunizations in the same manner as all KMC personnel.  The results of all 
examinations shall be provided to the KMC employee health department.  Resident physicians agree 
to comply with the KMC requirements concerning resident physician health status during the term of 
this MOU, as these requirements may be changed by KMC from time to time.   



5 of 23 

 
Section 10. Deductions and Contributions 
 

The Authority shall withhold from the compensation paid to each resident physician applicable state 
and federal income taxes and other required deductions.  The Authority shall pay the employer’s 
portion of FICA 1 (Social Security) and FICA 2 (Medicare) contributions, and all other employer taxes 
and insurance, as applicable and as required by law. 

 
 

ARTICLE III – RIGHTS OF PARTIES 
 
Section 1. Bulletin Boards 
 

The Authority agrees that CIR/SEIU may provide a standard bulletin board (not to exceed 24" x 36") 
for placement adjacent to existing Authority bulletin boards.  Posting of notices is governed by 
provisions of the EERR.  Resident physician representatives may post CIR/SEIU communications 
dealing with official CIR/SEIU business on Authority-approved bulletin boards.  A copy of each 
communication shall be filed with the Human Resources Department.  CIR/SEIU agrees not to post 
any notices that concern job actions or the political activities of CIR/SEIU. 

 
The Authority reserves the right to remove any bulletin board notice that does not conform to the above 
standards.  CIR/SEIU shall be given immediate notice of any material that is removed, and the 
Authority agrees, if requested by CIR/SEIU, to meet and discuss this removal as soon as it is mutually 
convenient. 
 
The Authority and CIR/SEIU further agree that CIR/SEIU may continue to use the Authority mail, e-
mail system, and pager system for official CIR/SEIU business in accordance with Authority rules 
relating to the use of Authority mail and e-mail.  The Authority’s mail and e-mail systems shall not be 
used for any communications dealing with job actions or political activities of CIR/SEIU.  

  
Failure of CIR/SEIU to adhere to the use of the Authority’s mail and e-mail systems in the above 
manner shall result in its revocation as a privilege extended to CIR/SEIU by the Authority. 

 
Section 2. Claims Review 
 

Resident physicians covered by this MOU who lose or damage their personal property in the course 
of their employment may process a claim for reimbursement in accordance with the Authority’s claim 
review procedure.  

 
Section 3. Nondiscrimination 
 

The Authority agrees not to discriminate against any resident physician for his/her activity on behalf 
of, or membership in, CIR/SEIU, as stated in the EERR. Both parties shall comply with all applicable 
federal and state laws prohibiting discrimination against any resident physician on the basis of race, 
color, creed, religion, age, sex, marital status, physical disability or the resident physician’s inclusion 
in a legally protected class. 

 
Section 4. Access to Files 
 

Resident physician performance evaluations will be provided in accordance with Authority policy and 
ACGME requirements.  



6 of 23 

 
All resident physicians shall have the right to access and review all documents placed in their 
individual academic, departmental, and employment files during the term of their appointment, 
excluding pre-appointment references.  Copies shall be provided at the Authority’s expense within five 
business days where a reasonable need therefore is established. The Authority will provide records 
once per year at the Authority’s expense. Resident physicians should make all requests for access and 
review of their individual files to the Department of Medical Education.  Access shall be provided 
within two business days of the request. 

 
Section 5. Resident Physician Representatives 
 

CIR/SEIU representatives shall have access to KMC and its clinics for the purpose of monitoring the 
administration of this MOU and grievance investigations. The number of representatives is determined 
by CIR/SEIU constitution, which maybe be amended from time to time. 

 
Prior to entering a work location to conduct a grievance investigation or to process a grievance, the 
resident physician representative shall inform the supervisor of his/her presence.  The affected resident 
physician shall be released to meet with the resident physician representative unless leaving the job 
would cause an undue work interruption, in which case the resident physician shall be released as soon 
as practicable thereafter. 

 
Section 6. Resident Physician Lists and Orientation 
 

It is recognized that CIR/SEIU has a need to communicate with its dues paying members in a timely 
and efficient manner and in order to alert new resident physicians of their right to belong to a union.  
Therefore, it is agreed: 

 
A. Monthly, if not prohibited by urgency of Authority business, the Authority will provide 

CIR/SEIU with the change of addresses of its dues paying members and new resident 
physicians of the Authority.     

B. The cost to the Authority of providing such addresses shall be borne by CIR/SEIU through 
monthly billing. 

C. If CIR/SEIU receives the addresses of a non-dues paying member (other than new resident 
physicians), it agrees not to use the addresses for any purpose, including CIR/SEIU business. 

D. Should any disputes arise regarding the application of this Section, they shall be discussed and 
resolved between CIR/SEIU and the Human Resources Department. 

 
CIR/SEIU shall have access to resident physicians during new resident physician orientation including 
45 minutes on the agenda to give a presentation to the incoming resident physicians. 

 
Section 7. Pagers 
 

Each resident physician shall be provided with a pager in accordance with KMC policy. 
 
Section 8. Call Rooms – Lounges 
 

The Authority shall provide on-call rooms as provided for in the Resident Policy Manual and in 
accordance with ACGME guidelines.  On-call rooms shall be equipped with functioning computers 
with intranet and internet access and telephones.  On-call rooms are for on-call resident physician use 
only, and are not to be used for spouses, children, and guests to spend the night. 
 



7 of 23 

On-call rooms shall be kept clean and tidy for the next person on-call.  Housekeeping service is 
available to empty the trash and replace the linens.  During daytime hours, housekeeping personnel 
shall be allowed to perform their duties.  Concerns with housekeeping services should be reported to 
the Program Director immediately. 

 
Resident physician on-call rooms shall be equipped with a functional lock.  KMC shall provide 
reasonable notice to CIR/SEIU of any change in location of the on-call rooms. 
 
An annual walk-through and survey of the on-call rooms shall be jointly conducted by CIR/SEIU and 
the Chief Academic Officer or his/her designee, if requested by CIR/SEIU, to assess the status of the 
on-call rooms and to ensure ACGME guidelines and compliance with this MOU.  The walk-through 
shall take place during the month of October.  CIR/SEIU and the Chief Academic Officer or designee 
shall generate a report of any repairs needed to be made to the call rooms and present it, through the 
Chief Academic Officer or designee, to KMC Administration for repair. 
 
In conjunction with the annual call room walk-through, CIR/SEIU, Chief Academic Officer or his/her 
designee, and the Chief Information Officer or his/her designee will conduct an annual IT walk-
through to assess medical technology needs.  The results of this walk-through shall be provided, in 
writing, by KMC at the labor management or the CIR/SEIU-KMC Patient Care Committee meeting.  
Resolution of issues identified in the IT walk-throughs will be addressed at the CIR/SEIU-KMC 
Patient Care Committee meetings.  Any issues that arise out of the IT walk-through will be resolved 
within a reasonable timeline. 

 
Section 9. Duty Hours 
 

Each resident physician shall perform his/her duties during such hours as the Program Director may 
direct in accordance with the policies and requirements of the Program, subject to periodic 
modification and variation as determined by the Program Director depending upon the clinical area to 
which a resident physician is assigned and exigent circumstances.  All duty hours shall be in 
accordance with state, federal, ACGME and other applicable requirements.  The call schedules and 
schedules of assignments shall be made available to resident physicians.  Changes to these schedules 
shall be available in the office of each Program Director.  Resident physicians shall comply with all 
assigned schedules in a timely fashion. 

 
Completion of a time-study survey recorded in E*Value is required from each resident physician on a 
continuous basis.  Program Directors will consistently monitor the duty hours in support of the physical 
and emotional well-being of the resident physicians, prevention of sleep deprivation, and assess 
resident physician fatigue based on these records. 

 
The Authority will adhere to the provisions of the Resident Policy Manual, ACGME, and other 
applicable requirements governing sleep deprivation and fatigue. 

 
Section 10. Parking 
 

Parking is provided in accordance with KMC policy, which may be revised from time to time.  Certain 
parking areas require a parking sticker and gate card.  Resident physician parking areas and restrictions 
are provided as outlined in the Resident Policy Manual.  If requested, KMC shall provide escort 
services for resident physicians when going to and from parking lots and other buildings on the hospital 
campus.  

 
Reimbursement of parking while on rotations outside of Kern County is outlined in ARTICLE VII. 



8 of 23 

 
Section 11. Strikes and Lockouts 
 

During the term of this MOU, the Authority agrees that it will not lock out resident physicians, and 
CIR/SEIU agrees that it will not engage in, encourage, or approve any strike, slowdown, or other work 
stoppage growing out of any dispute relating to the terms of this MOU.  CIR/SEIU shall take whatever 
possible lawful steps necessary to prevent any interruption of work in violation of this MOU.  
Furthermore, CIR/SEIU and the Authority recognize that the grievance and arbitration procedures 
contained in this MOU shall be used to resolve any and all controversies in any way arising out of, or 
concerning, any language in the MOU. 
 

Section 12. Out of Title Work 
 

The Authority shall adhere to the Educational Curriculum/Scholarly Activity requirements as outlined 
in the Resident Policy Manual and the ACGME guidelines. 
 

Section 13. Representation on Committees 
 
The Authority shall adhere to the hospital and Medical Staff committee requirements as outlined in 
the Resident Policy Manual and the ACGME guidelines. 

 
Section 14. Resident Physician Education 
 

The Authority shall make safety training available and/or provide web-based online safety training for 
resident physicians.  Resident physicians who staff the Emergency Department and Psychiatric 
Emergency Center shall also receive training on how to de-escalate violent patients.  
 
Upon reasonable notice, the KMC Director of Security or designee shall attend regularly scheduled 
meetings of the Resident Advisory Council to discuss resident physician safety and security concerns, 
safety and security initiatives, and changes within the hospital, recommendations for improvement, 
and other items and matters related to resident physician safety and security. 

 
Section 15. Program Security  
  
  The Authority shall notify each resident physician affected and CIR/SEIU:  

 
 As soon as reasonably possible of a decision to discontinue any Program for any reason. 
 As soon as reasonably possible upon receipt from ACGME, or any other relevant accrediting body 

of any notification regarding non-accreditation or probation or similar change in the accreditation 
status of any Program. 

 As soon as reasonably possible of a decision of a merger, closure, or change in the number of beds 
that has a substantial impact on any Program. 

  
For resident physicians continuing in a Program for which accreditation is lost, KMC shall maintain 
levels of training, continue to provide rotations required for certification, and add ancillary and 
professional staff to cover losses in resident physician coverage.  KMC shall take reasonable steps to 
try to gain full accreditation for the affected Program, to encourage resident physicians to remain in 
the Program, and to balance the service needs of KMC with the professional goals of the resident 
physicians involved. 

  



9 of 23 

Section 16. Resident Physician Impairment 
 

It is imperative that resident physicians not have their performance impaired by drugs, alcohol, or other 
circumstances.  For resident physicians who feel they may have such a problem, the Employee 
Assistance Program (EAP) and any other program offered by the Authority are available.  Every 
reasonable encouragement and support shall be given for this purpose.   

 
The EAP is available to all eligible resident physicians and their eligible dependents.  The purpose of 
the EAP is to provide evaluation and if appropriate, short term counseling for issues which may affect 
work performance or personal life.  Through a confidential self-referral process, any resident physician 
has an opportunity to discuss personal situations in strict confidence with a professional. 

 
A Department Chairman or Program Director may also make a formal referral if he/she feels that a 
resident physician’s job performance may benefit from this service.  No resident physician shall be 
disciplined or terminated for being referred to the EAP; however, disciplinary action may be taken for 
any underlying behavior or clinical performance issue, independent of supervisory referral. 

 
Section 17. Management Rights 
 

The Authority shall retain all customary rights, powers, functions, and authority consistent with state 
law, local ordinances, or other rules, which shall include, but not be limited to the right to: 
 
A. Determine the mission of the Authority, KMC, and departments; 
B. Set standards of services; 
C. Plan for and direct the work forces toward the organization’s goals and strategic priorities; 
D. Effect a reduction of authorized positions because of lack of work, or for other legitimate 

reasons; and 
E. Determine work methods, numbers and classifications of personnel, and types of equipment 

required to accomplish an objective. 
 
Section 18. Graduate Medical Education Agreement 
 

Each resident physician, prior to his/her employment with the Authority, shall receive a 
written Graduate Medical Education Agreement consistent with then-applicable ACGME 
requirements.  The form of individual agreement shall be furnished to CIR/SEIU, and if changed, a 
copy of any such changes shall be furnished to CIR/SEIU prior to its use.  Each resident physician 
agrees to execute a Graduate Medical Education Agreement prior to his/her initial appointment as a 
physician-in-training in the Program and each academic year thereafter if reappointed to the next level 
of training.  
 

Section 19. Labor-Management Agreement 
 
The Authority and CIR/SEIU agree, if requested, to hold periodic meetings at a mutually acceptable 
time, date, and place to discuss issues related to working conditions, call room walk-throughs, meals, 
and facilities.  Agenda items will be submitted one week prior to each meeting.  

  



10 of 23 

Section 20. Resident Patient Care Committee 
 

The Authority and CIR/SEIU agree that quality patient care and appropriate working environments 
require sufficient medical equipment, technological support, access to medical educational resources 
for providers, and addressing patient discharge needs.  The parties agree to continue a task force to 
consult on the development of a Resident Patient Care Committee.  The task force will work 
collaboratively to develop the role of the Resident Patient Care Committee as it relates to issues 
including but not limited to best practices regarding quality patient care and documentation, medical 
equipment and technological support needs, patient discharge needs, and access to medical educational 
materials for providers and patients.  The task force shall consist of a maximum of five members 
representing CIR/SEIU and a maximum of five members representing KMC including the Chief 
Medical Officer. 

 
ARTICLE IV – PAID AND UNPAID LEAVES 

 
Both the Authority and CIR/SEIU recognize that the use of any leave as described in this Article may require 
makeup time for purposes of completing Program requirements and Board certification eligibility, which is 
determined by the specific policy of each Board specialty and should be discussed with each individual 
Program Director.  Resident physicians remain responsible for meeting the applicable time and other 
requirements of their Program.   
 
Section 1. Vacation 
  

A. During the first four years of consecutive service, each full time resident physician shall be 
credited with 160 hours (20 days) of vacation leave for each one-year term of service.  
Beginning with the fifth year of consecutive service, each full time resident physician will be 
credited with 176 hours (22 days) of vacation leave.  Vacation leave shall accrue on the 
commencement date of the resident physicians’ individual Graduate Medical Education 
Agreement, and shall be pro-rated from the commencement date of each academic year.  The 
academic year begins on July 1.  Vacation leave may be taken at any time thereafter. 

  
Part- time resident physicians shall earn vacation leave at a rate proportionate to full time 
resident physicians, based on the number of regular hours worked by the part time resident 
physician per pay period in relation to 80 hours. 

 
B. Vacation is to be taken at the mutual convenience of the resident physician and the Program 

Director.  The standard vacation increment is a two-week block.  (For the purpose of 
calculating vacation leave, a one-week block is defined as five days and includes Monday 
through Friday and contiguous weekend days preceding and following the five -day block.)  
This may vary from Program to Program.  Increments less than one week shall be approved 
only under exceptional circumstances.   
 

C. In general, vacation during the month of June shall not be granted.  Vacation during the month 
of June shall be approved only under exceptional circumstances. 
 

D. Vacation leave not taken at the expiration of each one-year term of service shall be credited to 
the next consecutive one-year term of service up to a maximum of 480 hours (60 days).   If 
the maximum accrual amount is reached, the resident physician shall not earn (accrue) 
vacation leave until the vacation leave balance is reduced below the maximum. 
 



11 of 23 

E. Resident physicians shall be paid for accrued and unused vacation leave upon termination of 
employment.  

 
F. All vacation leave must be approved in advance by the Program Director. 

 
Section 2. Sick Leave 

 
A. Each full-time resident physician shall accrue sick leave credit at the rate of 2.46 hours per 

biweekly pay period, for a maximum accrual of 64 hours (eight days) per year.  Total unused 
sick leave accumulated shall not exceed a maximum of 321 hours (40 days).  If the maximum 
accrual amount is reached, the resident physician shall not earn (accrue) sick leave until the 
sick leave balance is reduced below the maximum.   
 
Part-time resident physicians shall earn sick leave at a rate proportionate to full-time resident 
physicians, based on the number of regular hours worked by the part-time resident physician 
per pay period in relation to 80 hours. 
 

B. Resident physicians may be granted sick leave with pay up to the maximum number of hours 
of sick leave accrued as outlined in this MOU and under the terms and conditions set forth in 
the KMC Sick Leave Policy. 
 

C. Accrued sick leave hours remaining at the expiration of each one-year term of service shall be 
credited to the next consecutive one-year term of service up to a maximum of 321 hours. 

   
D. Resident physicians shall not be paid for accrued and unused sick leave upon termination of 

employment.   
 

Section 3.  Holidays 
 
Resident physicians shall be entitled to all paid holidays authorized as official holidays for Authority 
employees.  If a resident physician is scheduled for and works on an official holiday, the resident 
physician shall be granted an alternate day off.  Resident physicians shall not be paid for accrued and 
unused holidays upon termination of employment.   

 
Section 4.   Fellowship/Post-Residency Employment Interviews 

 
During the final year of the Program, a resident physician may take up to five days of paid leave for 
interviews related to fellowship training or post-residency employment. 

 
Section 5.    Leaves of Absence 

 
A. Family Sick Leave: Resident physicians are entitled to use accrued sick leave to take time off 

for the illness of an immediate family member up to a maximum of 10 days per year.  
Immediate family member is defined in the KMC Family Care Leave Policy. 

 
B. Family Care Leave: Family and medical leaves of absence (including leave for the birth and 

care of a newborn, placement of a child with an employee for adoption or foster care, care of 
a spouse, child, or parent who has a serious health condition or serious health condition of 
the employee) will comply with state and federal law and Authority policies. 

 



12 of 23 

C. Discretionary Leave: Resident physicians may be granted, upon proper written request and 
approval of KMC, the Program Director, and the Director of Medical Education a 
discretionary leave of absence without pay for personal reasons.  Approval of such leave 
without pay under this section shall be conditioned on finding that:  

 

(i) the situation or condition necessitating leave is not remedial by other means;  
 
(ii) refusal to authorize leave will result in personal hardship or suffering for the resident 
physician or his/her immediate family; and (iii) the absence of the resident physician will 
not substantially interfere with the service of the affected clinical department and/or 
Program.  All vacation leave and holiday hours must be exhausted prior to granting a 
discretionary leave.  Whenever a resident physician who has taken a discretionary leave 
desires to return before expiration of such leave, the resident physician shall notify KMC 
in writing as least five calendar days in advance of the return.  The resident physician shall 
promptly notify the Program Director and Director of Medical Education of his/her return.  
Discretionary leaves must comply with the KMC Discretionary Leave Policy. 

 
Extended leaves for any reason may impact the successful or timely completion of the resident 
physician’s progress toward completion of the Program.  Resident physicians expressly acknowledge 
that training after a leave of absence may be required to satisfy the criteria for completion of the 
Program or eligibility for certification by the relevant certifying Board. 

 
D. Bereavement Leave: A resident physician may be granted the use of up to 10 days of accrued 

sick leave for the death and/or funeral of a member of his/her immediate family.  Immediate 
family member is defined as spouse, registered domestic partner, child, stepchild, foster child, 
grandchild, sibling, parent, step-parent, grandparent, and in-laws (parent, grandparent or 
sibling only). 

 
E. Military Leave: Military leave is granted in compliance with state and federal law. 
 

  
ARTICLE V – COMPENSATION  

 
Section 1. Biweekly Salary 
 
The appointment of a resident physician shall be based on the resident physician’s appropriate post-graduate 
year (PGY) level, as set forth below, which shall be determined as follows:  
 

A. A resident physician who has not completed at least one year of service in an ACGME 
accredited Program or an equivalent Program shall be placed at the PGY-1 level. 

 
B. Resident physicians shall be placed at PGY levels commensurate with their training in the 

Program in which they are appointed. 
 
C. A year of service in a Program shall mean a year of service in a Program that has been certified 

as having been completed by the appropriate authority. 
 
D. A resident physician who successfully completes his/her service for a year and is reappointed 

to serve for an additional year shall be advanced to the next higher PGY level. 
 



13 of 23 

E. Resident physicians who have satisfied the eligibility requirements set forth in Exhibit “A” of the 
Graduate Medical Education Agreement and who are eligible for employment in the United States 
shall begin being paid as of the commencement date of the resident physicians’ individual 
Graduate Medical Education Agreement.  

 
The flat biweekly salary for represented resident physicians by classification shall be as follows: 
 

Classification Flat Biweekly 
Salary  

Resident Physician (Post Graduate Year 1) $ 1,791.30 
Resident Physician (Post Graduate Year 2) $ 1,916.69 
Resident Physician (Post Graduate Year 3) $ 2,050.85 
Resident Physician (Post Graduate Year 4) $ 2,194.43 
Resident Physician (Post Graduate Year 5) $ 2,348.07 

 
The Authority and CIR/SEIU agree to meet and confer with the intent of reviewing wages not sooner than 45 
days but no later than 60 days after the Board of Governors approves a new Memorandum of Understanding 
between the Authority and Service Employees International Union, Local 521.  
 
Section 2. Medical Language Certification 
 

The Authority agrees to compensate resident physicians for medical language certification under the 
terms and conditions outlined in the KMC Staff Healthcare Interpreter: Resident Physicians policy.   
 
The Authority reserves the right to limit the number of languages qualifying for compensation, the 
number of employees qualifying for medical language certification, the number of certifications a 
resident physician may obtain, and the process for which certification is obtained.  

  
Section 3. Educational Fund 
 

Each resident physician shall be reimbursed in an amount not to exceed $1,000 per academic year for 
the purchase of one or more of the following items, which may include: 
 
medical books, medical software, registration fees for educational conferences, medical equipment 
(pre-approval from the Program Director must be obtained before purchasing medical equipment), fees 
for required exams, board examinations, board and exam preparation programs, and other required 
trainings.  Travel expenses are not eligible for reimbursement through this fund.   
 
This amount may be accumulated or accrued and will continue to the following academic year.  Upon 
termination of employment, the credit balance, if any, will be forfeited.  Resident physicians must be 
in good standing in the Program as determined by the Program Director, Department Chairman, and 
Chief Academic Officer, and remain actively employed and in compliance with KMC policies and 
directives concerning job performance in order to receive reimbursement through this fund. 
 
For the 2017/18 fiscal year, the reimbursement amount available to each Resident physician will be 
prorated to $250 representing the period beginning March 31, 2018 and ending June 30, 2018.   
 

  



14 of 23 

Section 4. License Fees  
 

The Authority will pay 100% of each resident physician’s license to practice medicine in the state of 
California.  The procedure requires the resident physician to pay the fee directly to the appropriate 
agency (Medical Board of California or Osteopathic Medical Board of California) and submit a claim 
for payment, signed by the resident physician and the department head or designee, showing the 
amount, agency, and type of professional fee to be reimbursed.  Proof of the professional fee must be 
attached to the claim (invoice for payment with copy of check, credit card receipt or statement, etc.). 
 

Section 5. Drug Enforcement Administration (DEA) Certificate  
 
Resident physicians who prescribe, order, administer or handle controlled substances are required to 
obtain an individual Controlled Substance Registration Certificate issued by the United States 
Department of Justice Drug Enforcement Administration (“DEA”).  Registrations may be obtained on 
a fee-exempt basis while in training in a Program.  However, such registrations are restricted to 
activities within the scope of the Program (including activities a KMC sites and other affiliated training 
sites).  Exemption from payment of the individual registration application fee is limited to federal, 
state or local government duties (21 CFR § 1301.21).  Resident physicians who engage in outside 
professional activities (e.g., moonlighting) at any site outside of the Program must obtain an individual 
DEA registration and may not use their fee-exempt registration for this purpose.  
 

 
ARTICLE VI – BENEFITS  

 
Section 1. Eligibility 
 

Resident physicians enrolled full time in a Program are entitled to full benefits.  Resident physicians 
employed at 0.5 FTE or greater but less than full time are eligible for prorated benefits.  Resident 
physicians employed less than 0.5 FTE are not eligible for benefits.  All requests for less than full 
time status must be approved by and are at the sole discretion of the Department of Medical 
Education upon recommendation of the Program Director.  The Authority shall continue to provide 
an annual open enrollment for resident physicians to change plans and/or enroll eligible dependents. 

 
Section 2. Health Care Coverage 
 

Resident physicians shall receive the same health benefits (medical, dental, prescription and vision 
coverage) as all eligible Authority employees.  The employee share of cost is 20% of the current 
biweekly premium.  Resident physicians are eligible for coverage the first day of the biweekly 
payroll period coincident with or next following the day they complete one month of continuous 
service.  The resident physician’s initial hire date is the initial opportunity to enroll in the health plan.  
Resident physicians must work at least 40 hours per biweekly pay period to be eligible for coverage. 

 
Section 3. Flexible Spending Accounts 
 

Resident physicians are eligible to participate in flexible spending plans to pay for dependent care, 
non-reimbursed medical expenses, and certain insurance premiums on a pre-tax basis through payroll 
deduction.  This is a voluntary benefit that is paid by the resident physician if he/she elects to 
participate in the plan. 

 
 



15 of 23 

Section 4. Workers’ Compensation 
 

The Authority provides workers’ compensation coverage as required by law to protect employees who 
are injured on the job.  This coverage provides payment for medical expenses and temporary disability 
(in lieu of lost earnings) for workers who are injured in the course of their employment.  Temporary 
disability payments begin on the first day of hospitalization or after the third day following a lost time 
injury if an employee is not hospitalized.  
 

Section 5. Disability Insurance Plan 
  

The Authority shall make a monthly contribution to the CIR/SEIU House Staff Benefits Fund (HSBF) 
in the amount of $12.00 for each resident physician who is actively employed on the first day of each 
month, for the purpose of providing short-term and long-term disability benefits.  

 
Section 6. State Disability Insurance 
  

The Authority has an integrated disability plan with the state.  The resident physician’s wages are 
integrated with the disability payments from the state, which enables the resident physician to extend 
his/her sick leave or vacation leave.  The resident physician’s wages (sick leave and vacation leave 
used) are offset by disability payments and the corresponding sick leave and vacation time is restored 
to the resident physician’s sick leave and vacation balances.  
 
State disability applications are available from the KMC Human Resources Department or online at 
www.edd.ca.gov/disability.  Resident physicians who file for state disability insurance are required to 
submit the Notice of Computation to the KMC Human Resources Department for purposes of 
integrating sick or other eligible leave time with state disability benefits.  

 
Section 7. Retirement 
 

Resident physicians are eligible to participate in the Kern County Deferred Compensation Plan (457 
Plan) on a pre-tax basis.  Resident physicians shall be required to make all contributions if electing to 
participate in the 457 Plan.  

 
Section 8. Meals 
 

Each resident physician, while on duty at KMC, shall be permitted to take meals in the KMC 
cafeteria during regular business hours.  Resident physicians shall be given a meal allowance of 
$164.71 per biweekly pay period that will be direct deposited and appear as a separate line item on 
their biweekly pay statement.  Resident physicians shall receive the customary cafeteria employee 
discount for KMC staff in effect from time to time.   The meal allowance will be prorated based 
upon the number of days in the last pay period a resident physician is employed by the Authority. 
 
KMC shall arrange that the food left over from the food prepared daily for resident physicians be 
packed, date stamped with preparation dates, and stored at the end of the day so that the food is 
available for the night meal. KMC shall prepare sufficient food daily to ensure that healthy night meals 
are available or provide frozen meals for all resident physicians who are assigned to nighttime duty or 
in-hospital on-call duty. 

 
KMC shall make every reasonable effort to provide meals in the cafeteria with sensitivity and 
consideration to a greater variety of dietary needs, including full vegetarian, kosher, and ethnic-specific 
diets on a daily basis.  



16 of 23 

Section 9. Uniforms 
 

Lab coats are provided upon entry into the Program.  KMC shall furnish two lab coats for categorical 
resident physicians and one lab coat for preliminary resident physicians.  Resident physicians are 
responsible for maintenance of the lab coats.  Scrubs will be issued to resident physicians in General 
Surgery, Emergency Medicine, and OB/GYN, and all resident physicians on rotations in these 
departments.  Scrubs will be issued via a scrubs vending machine.  Resident physicians will be given 
a card that allows access to two sets of scrubs at a time.  One set of scrubs shall be issued to Internal 
Medicine and Psychiatry resident physicians. 

 
Section 10. Professional Training 
 

Every resident physician must be certified in basic life support (BLS), advanced cardiac life support 
(ACLS) and fundamental critical care support (FCCS).  To assure that all resident physicians get 
certified on the first day of duty, KMC shall pay the American Hospital Association the fees for 
certification, which subsequently provides the books and materials for the classes as part of that fee.  
The Medical Library has one copy of BLS and ACLS books for reference and use only in the library. 
The Medical Library will not check out books used for certification or recertification purposes.  It is 
recommended that resident physicians keep the initial books issued for the recertification process.  In 
addition, each emergency medicine resident physician shall be certified in advanced trauma life 
support (ATLS) and neonatal resuscitation program (NRP); each OB/GYN resident physician shall be 
certified in NRP; and each surgery resident physician shall be certified in ATLS and fundamental 
laparoscopic surgery (FLS).   
 
KMC shall be responsible for the cost and coordination of all the required recertification classes listed 
above.  KMC through its Department of Graduate Medical Education shall work with each Program 
to schedule the recertification classes during times when the majority of resident physicians are able 
to attend.  Resident physicians shall be notified at least a two weeks in advance of the scheduled 
class(es), in order to ensure their attendance. KMC shall email each resident physician every six 
months with the expiration dates of their required certifications. 

 
KMC may reimburse for required training and/or recertification training costs from non-KMC 
providers if a resident physician can submit proof with the claim for reimbursement demonstrating 
that they (1) notified the Associate Director of Medical Education at least 60 days in advance of the 
requirement/expiration of difficulty with scheduling mandatory training or recertification due to 
vacation leave and/or work schedule, and (2) provide documentation of such conflict at least 60 days 
in advance of the requirement/expiration of mandatory training or recertification.  All reimbursable 
expenses are subject to KMC policies regarding employment related expenses.  

 
 

ARTICLE VII – TRAVEL POLICY 
 
Resident physicians will be provided a travel allowance if they are in good standing in the Program as 
determined by the Program Director, Department Chairman, and Chief Academic Officer.  All reimbursable 
expenses are subject to KMC’s reimbursement procedures.  
 
Three types of resident physician travel arrangements are eligible for reimbursement: 
 

 Travel to attend a national meeting within the United States to present a first-author potential 
publication, abstract, or poster exhibit. 



17 of 23 

 Travel to attend a pre-approved education conference relevant to and the resident physician’s 
Program within the United States.  Upon return, under the direction of the Program Director, an 
educational report to the respective clinical department is expected. 

 Attendance at mandatory rotations based on ACGME-approved curriculum, unless the host 
hospital or department provides food, mileage, and lodging. 

 
Section 1. Education Benefit Travel 
 

Over the course of the Program, one trip will be reimbursed for a national subspecialty education 
conference.  Up to three trips may be paid if the resident physician is the first author who is presenting 
an abstract or poster exhibit at a national meeting.  Meetings outside the United States are not 
reimbursed. 
 
Resident physicians must request approval of prospective travel allowance by completing the KMC 
Travel Authorization Form six weeks prior to departure.  Course syllabus or meeting brochures must 
be submitted and reviewed by the Program Director.  The anticipated absence must be cleared by the 
Program Director for non-interference with coverage schedules. 

 
Standard meeting coverage includes airfare, up to two nights lodging for presentation trips, and three 
nights for educational meetings, related per diem meals, and incidental expenses as set forth in the 
KMC employee travel reimbursement policy.  If more than one resident physician attends the same 
meeting, the hotel room should be shared if gender is the same.  Travel reimbursement for a national 
subspecialty education conference is capped at $1,500.  

 
If travel is by private automobile, current Authority established procedures must be followed and 
odometer readings before and after travel must be noted.  Approved mileage rates, parking, and other 
driving expenses will be reimbursed pursuant to the KMC employee travel reimbursement policy.  
Proof of automobile insurance and a valid driver license must be provided.   

 
The resident physician must provide all original receipts for expenses to be reimbursed and must follow 
the KMC employee travel reimbursement policy to be eligible for reimbursement.  Receipts should be 
submitted to the Program Coordinator no later than five business days after travel. 

 
If travel to the requested meeting is not approved, a separate request for personal time without 
reimbursement may be made to the Program Director.  Educational leave is not subject to the ACGME 
duty hours rule. 
 

Section 3. Travel for Outside Rotations 
 

Resident physicians on mandatory rotations to attend Graduate Medical Education Committee 
approved rotations at UCLA campuses including Harbor, Olive View, and Ronald Reagan Medical 
Center, Cedars-Sinai Medical Center, and the VA Greater Los Angeles Hospital, may share the two-
room KMC/UCLA apartments at no cost to the resident physician.  The apartments are furnished and 
utilities are paid by KMC.  Resident physicians on mandatory rotations at Valley Children’s Hospital 
will be provided housing at a hotel selected by KMC at no cost to the resident physician.  Resident 
physicians will be provided per diem and mileage reimbursement pursuant to the KMC employee 
travel reimbursement policy if not otherwise provided by the host hospital. 

 
Elective rotations are not reimbursable.  

 
 



18 of 23 

ARTICLE VIII – GRIEVANCE AND ARBITRATION PROCEDURE 
 
OBJECTIVES 
 

1. Informally settle disagreements at the resident physician-supervisor level. 
2. Provide an orderly procedure to handle the grievance through each level of supervision. 
3. Correct, if possible, the cause of the grievance to prevent future complaints. 
4. Promote harmonious relations among resident physicians, their supervisors, and departmental 

administrators. 
5. Assure fair and equitable treatment of all resident physicians. 
6. Resolve grievances at the departmental level before appeal to higher levels. 

 
 
DEFINITIONS  
 
The following terms, as used in the Article, shall have the following meaning: 
 
Appointing Authority:  The Chief Executive Officer of the Authority. 
 
CIR/SEIU Representative:  A person who appears on behalf of the resident physician. 
 
Day:  Calendar day, exclusive of Saturday, Sunday, and designated Authority holidays. 
 
Grievance:  A grievance shall be defined as a dispute regarding the interpretation or application of the terms 
of this MOU.  Issues regarding documentation required for certification of eligibility shall be handled as set 
forth in Exhibit “A” of the Graduate Medical Education Agreement.  Disputes regarding disciplinary and fair 
hearing procedures shall be handled as set forth in Exhibit “B” of the Graduate Medical Education Agreement.  
Grievances may be brought by an individual resident physician and CIR/SEIU, or by CIR/SEIU alone. 
 
Immediate Supervisor:  The person who assigns, reviews, or directs the work of a resident physician. 
 
Resident Physician:  An intern, resident, or fellow employed by the Authority.  
 
Program:  Any or all graduate residency or fellowship programs operated by the Authority.  

 
Superior:  The person to whom an immediate supervisor reports. 
 

 
EXCLUSIONS 

 
1. Work assignments. 
2. Matters related to promotions to the next PGY level appointments and salaries related thereto. 
3. Professional and academic matters.  Such matters are subject to the Resident Policy Manual 

and ACGME guidelines, which may be revised from time to time. 
4. Reappointment or promotion to the next level of training in the Program. 
5. Closure or reduction in size of the Program to which the resident physician is appointed. 
6. Matters subject to the Disciplinary and Fair Hearing Procedures set forth in Exhibit “B” of the 

Graduate Medical Education Agreement, including without limitation, probationary and 
disciplinary matters. 



19 of 23 

7. Authority policy and ordinance questions, including subjects involving newly established or 
amendments to existing Authority resolutions, ordinances, or minute orders, unless the 
allegation is that they are not uniformly administered. 

8. Resident physician evaluations of performance, and progress in training or remediation. 
9. Impasses in meeting and conferring upon terms of a proposed MOU. 
10. Grievances filed after 20 days from the date of occurrence, or after 20 days from the date the 

resident physician had knowledge of an occurrence. 
11. Grievances filed after a resident physician’s appointment in the Program has terminated or 

expired. 
12. Appointment/Reappointment to a Program. 
13. Matters subject to Employment Security. 
14. Matters subject to reappointment based on Institutional Factors. 
15. Documentation required for Certification of Eligibility as set forth in Exhibit “A” of the 

Graduate Medical Education Agreement. 
16. Challenges to the Agency Fee Amount. 
 

TIME LIMITS 
 
Time limits are established to settle grievances quickly.  Time limits may be extended by agreement of the 
parties.  If the grievant is not satisfied with the decision rendered, it shall be the grievant's responsibility to 
initiate the action which submits the grievance to the next level of review within the time limits specified.  
Failure of the resident physician to submit the grievance within the time limits imposed shall terminate the 
grievance process, and the matter shall be considered resolved.  Failure of the Authority to respond within the 
time limits specified will allow the grievant to submit the grievance to the next higher step of the grievance 
procedure. 
 
THE PARTIES' RIGHTS AND RESTRICTIONS 
 

1. A party to the grievance shall have the right to record a formal grievance meeting at the 
expense of the requesting party. 

2. The grievance procedure shall not limit the right of any resident physician to present a 
grievance individually. 

3. A resident physician may have a representative present at all steps of the grievance procedure. 
4. Reasonable time in processing a grievance shall be allowed during regular working hours with 

advanced supervisor approval. Supervisory approval shall not be unreasonably withheld. 
5. Only a person selected by the resident physician from within a recognized resident physician 

organization and made known to management prior to a scheduled grievance meeting shall 
have the right to represent or advocate as a resident physician’s representative. 

6. Nothing within this grievance procedure shall be construed as limiting the right of 
management to manage the affairs of the Authority.  

7. Grievances of an identical nature concerning the same subject matter may be consolidated. 
 

INFORMAL GRIEVANCE DISPOSITION 
 

1. Within 20 days from the occurrence of the issue that gave rise to the complaint, or within 20 
days from the resident physician’s knowledge of the occurrence (but no later than the 
expiration or termination of the resident physician’s then-current appointment) a resident 
physician shall promptly and informally meet to discuss the complaint with his/her immediate 
supervisor.  In those circumstances where the nature of the complaint involves the immediate 
supervisor, the resident physician may informally discuss the complaint with the next higher 
level of supervision, provided prior notification is given the immediate supervisor by the 



20 of 23 

resident physician.  Such initial discussion shall precede the use of the formal grievance 
procedure.  If the supervisor fails to reply to the resident physician within five days of the 
meeting, or if the resident physician is not satisfied with the decision, the resident physician 
may utilize the formal grievance procedure. 

 
Grievance forms are available at KMC for this purpose. 

 
 
FORMAL GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE 
 

Step 1. The grievance form and any supporting documents shall be delivered to the Program 
Director/Supervisor with whom the informal meeting was held no later than five days from 
receipt of the Program Director/Supervisor's informal response or within 10 days from the 
close of the informal meeting if no decision is rendered.  The formal grievance procedure shall 
be initiated by the resident physician, stating the nature of the grievance, the alleged violation 
by section or number, if any, and the desired solution, in writing on the grievance form, 
together with any supporting documents attached to the grievance form. 

 
The Program Director/Supervisor shall hold a formal meeting with the resident physician 
within five days of the receipt of the formal grievance to review the facts, gather all supporting 
documents, discuss the complaint and desired solution, and discuss the proper appeal 
procedure. 
 
The Program Director/Supervisor shall issue a written decision on the original grievance form 
within five days of the close of the formal meeting. 

 
Step 2. If the resident physician feels the Program Director/Supervisor has not resolved the grievance, 

the resident physician may appeal to the next higher level of supervision (the Department 
Chair) and Chief Medical Officer (CMO) jointly.  At this time, all supporting documents and 
evidence relative to the grievance shall be included with the appeal and made known to both 
parties.  The Department Chair, together with the CMO, shall hold a formal meeting with the 
resident physician and his/her representative, if requested, within 10 days from the date of the 
appeal receipt, and attempt to settle the grievance. 

 
A written decision shall be provided, which will include a copy of the original grievance form, 
to the resident physician by the CMO within 10 days from the close of the formal meeting. 

 
Step 3. If the resident physician is not satisfied with the decision of the CMO, the resident physician 

may appeal the decision to the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) within five days from receipt 
of the CMO’s decision. In his/her appeal to the CEO, all supporting documents must be 
attached to the grievance form, together with the grievant’s reason for appeal and stated 
remedy requested. 

 
The CEO or his/her designee shall review the original grievance, all supporting documents, 
the CMO’s response, and the remedy requested, and issue a written decision within 10 days 
of receipt of the grievance. 

 
If the resident physician is not satisfied with the decision of the CEO or his/her designee, the 
resident physician may, within 30 days of receipt of the decision, submit the grievance to 
advisory arbitration by written request to the CEO. 
 



21 of 23 

If the grievance is submitted to advisory arbitration, the grievant, his/her representative, if any, 
and the CEO, or his/her designee, shall, within five days of receipt of the grievant's request, 
set a date for a meeting to: 

 
1. Attempt to settle the grievance; 
2. Agree to any stipulations; 
3. Agree upon the issue statement (the issue statement will reflect the issue as presented 

in the original grievance as written on grievance form); and 
4. Select an impartial arbitrator. 

 
SELECTION OF THE ADVISORY ARBITRATOR 
 
If the parties fail to agree on an arbitrator, a list of five neutrals will be jointly requested from the Federal 
Mediation Service, the State Mediation and Conciliation Service, or the American Arbitration Association.  
The agency will be mutually selected. 
 
The parties shall select a neutral by alternately striking a name from the list, with the remaining name being 
the selected neutral. Should both parties agree that the first list submitted is unsatisfactory, the parties may 
request a second list. 
 
The arbitration procedure shall be informal and private.  The arbitration procedure shall not be bound by any 
of the rules of evidence governing trial procedure in state courts. 
 
The arbitrator shall not have the power to add to, subtract from, or otherwise modify the provisions of any 
MOU, Rules, Regulations, local ordinances, or the policies and procedures of the Authority. 
 
The arbitrator shall confine himself/herself to the issue submitted. 
 
The arbitrator's decision is binding upon approval by the Kern County Hospital Authority Board of Governors. 

 
The cost of the arbitrator shall be borne equally between the Authority and the grievant. Each party shall bear 
its own costs relating to the arbitration including, but not limited to, witness fees, transcriptions and attorneys’ 
fees.  
 
The arbitrator shall be requested to submit his/her decision within 30 days from the close of the hearing. 
 

ARTICLE IX – SEVERABILITY 
 
In the event that any provision of this MOU is found to be in contradiction of any federal, state, or local law 
or regulation, or found by any court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, such invalidity shall not impair the 
validity and enforceability of the remaining provisions of this MOU.  
 

ARTICLE X – STABILITY OF THE MOU 
 
No agreement, understanding, alteration, or variation of the terms and conditions of this MOU shall bind the 
parties hereto unless made in writing and executed by the parties.  
 
The failure of the Authority or CIR/SEIU to insist, in any one or more incidents, upon performance of any of 
the terms or conditions of this MOU shall not be considered as a waiver or relinquishment of the right of the 
Authority or CIR/SEIU to future performance of any such term or condition, and obligations of the Authority 
and CIR/SEIU to such future performance shall continue in full force and effect.  



22 of 23 

 
The parties acknowledge that during the negotiations which resulted in this MOU, each had the unlimited right 
and opportunity to make demands and proposals with respect to any subject or matter not removed by law or 
the EERR from the scope of bargaining, and that the agreements arrived at by the parties after the exercise of 
that right and opportunity are set forth herein. The parties, for the life of this MOU, voluntarily and without 
qualification waive the right, and agree that the other shall not be obligated to bargain collectively, with respect 
to any subject or matter referred to or covered by this MOU.  

 
 

[Signatures follow on next page]





 
 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 

A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS 
KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 

 
March 21, 2018 
 

Subject:  Proposed Agreement with Randolph Fok, M.D., an independent contractor, for professional 

medical services in the Department of Obstetrics and Gynecology 
 

Recommended Action:  Approve; Authorize Chairman to sign subject to approval as to form by 

Counsel 
 

Summary:   
 

Kern Medical recommends your Board approval an Agreement with Randolph Fok, M.D., for 
professional medical services in the Department of Obstetrics and Gynecology.  Dr. Fok, who 
specializes in the diagnosis and treatment of women with high risk pregnancies, serves as Chief of Kern 
Medical’s Division of Maternal-Fetal Medicine.  The Agreement is for a term of two years from April 1, 
2018 through March 31, 2020.  Dr. Fok is compensated annually based on a fixed fee in the amount of 
$260,700 that is prorated monthly in two payments.  He is also paid for call coverage.  The maximum 
payable under the Agreement will not exceed $600,000 over the two-year term. 
 
Therefore, it is recommended that your Board approve the Agreement with Dr. Fok and authorize the 
Chairman to sign subject to approval as to form by Counsel. 
 



1 

 

AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 

(Kern County Hospital Authority – Randolph Fok, M.D.)                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                                               
 

This Agreement is made and entered into this _____ day of __________, 2018, between 

the Kern County Hospital Authority, a local unit of government (“Authority”), which owns and 

operates Kern Medical Center (“KMC”), and Randolph Fok, M.D., a sole proprietor 

(“Contractor”), whose principal place of business is located at 2330 Truxtun Avenue, Suite A, 

Bakersfield, California 93301. 

 

RECITALS 

 

(a) Authority is authorized, pursuant to section 101852 of Part 4 of Division 101 of 

the Health and Safety Code, to contract for special services with individuals specially trained, 

experienced, expert, and competent to perform those services; and 

 

 (b) Authority owns and operates KMC, a general acute care hospital located at 1700 

Mount Vernon Avenue, Bakersfield, California (the “Premises”), in which is located the 

Department of Obstetrics and Gynecology (the “Department”); and   

 

 (c) Authority requires the assistance of Contractor to provide professional medical 

services to patients of KMC and teaching services to resident physicians and medical students, as 

such services are unavailable from Authority resources, and Contractor agrees to provide such 

services on the terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement; and 

 

 (d) Contractor has special knowledge, training and experience, and is qualified to 

render such services;  

  

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants and conditions 

hereinafter set forth and incorporating by this reference the foregoing recitals, the parties hereto 

agree as follows:  

 

II. 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

 

1. Term.  This Agreement shall be effective and the term shall commence as of April 1, 

2018 (the “Effective Date”), and shall end March 31, 2020, unless earlier terminated pursuant to 

other provisions of this Agreement as herein stated.           

 

2. Obligations of Contractor.  

 

 2.1 Specified Services.  Contractor shall render those services set forth in Exhibit 

“A,” attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference.  Such services may be changed 

from time to time by agreement of the parties in accordance with the provisions of this 

Agreement.   
    

 



2 

 

2.2 Qualifications.   

 

2.2.1 Licensure/Board Certification.  Contractor shall at all times during the 

term of this Agreement be duly licensed as a physician and surgeon in the state of 

California, practicing in the medical specialty of maternal-fetal medicine, and certified or 

eligible for certification by the American Board of Obstetrics and Gynecology in 

obstetrics and gynecology-general with subspecialty certification in maternal-fetal 

medicine, and maintain such certifications at all times during the term of this Agreement. 

 

2.2.2 Medical Staff Status.  Contractor shall at all times during the term of this 

Agreement be a member in good standing of the KMC medical staff with “active” or 

“courtesy” staff status and hold all clinical privileges on the active or courtesy medical 

staff appropriate to the discharge of his obligations under this Agreement. 

 

2.2.3 TJC and ACGME Compliance.  Contractor shall observe and comply with 

all applicable standards and recommendations of The Joint Commission and 

Accreditation Council for Graduate Medical Education. 

 

2.2.4 Training/Experience.  Contractor shall have (i) recent experience in 

obstetrics and gynecology and maternal-fetal medicine including without limitation, the 

diagnosis and treatment of women who have complicated or high-risk pregnancies, (ii) an 

academic background to include teaching and working in an academic medical center, 

experience working with other clinical departments, teaching residents and medical 

students, participating in hospital committees, and working on pathways and evidence-

based guidelines, and (iii) ongoing acute care hospital experience. 

 

2.3 Loss or Limitation.  Contractor shall notify KMC promptly of any loss, sanction, 

suspension or material limitations of his license to practice in the state of California, Controlled 

Substance Registration Certificate issued by the Drug Enforcement Administration, right to 

participate in the Medicare or Medicaid programs, or specialty qualifications for medical staff 

membership or clinical privileges. 

 

2.4 Standards of Medical Practice.  The standards of medical practice and 

professional duties of Contractor shall be in accordance with the KMC medical staff bylaws, 

rules, regulations, and policies, the standards for practice established by the state Department of 

Public Health and all other state and federal laws and regulations relating to the licensure and 

practice of physicians, and The Joint Commission. 

 

2.5 Medical Record Documentation.  Contractor shall cause a complete medical 

record to be timely prepared and maintained for each patient seen by Contractor.  This record 

shall be prepared in compliance with all state and federal regulations, standards of The Joint 

Commission, and the KMC medical staff bylaws, rules, regulations, and policies.  

Documentation by Contractor will conform to the requirements for evaluation and management 

(E/M) services billed by teaching physicians set forth in the Medicare Carriers Manual, Part 3, 

sections 15016–15018, inclusive. 

 



3 

 

 

2.6 Taxes.  Contractor agrees to file federal and state tax returns and pay all 

applicable taxes on amounts paid pursuant to this Agreement and shall be solely liable and 

responsible to pay such taxes and other obligations, including, but not limited to, state and 

federal income and FICA taxes.  Contractor agrees to indemnify and hold Authority harmless 

from any liability which it may incur to the United States or to the state of California as a 

consequence of Contractor’s failure to pay, when due, all such taxes and obligations.  In case 

Authority is audited for compliance regarding any withholding or other applicable taxes, 

Contractor agrees to furnish Authority with proof of payment of taxes on these earnings. 

 

 2.7 Quality Improvement and Risk Management.  Contractor agrees that he shall 

participate in (i) the quality improvement and risk management programs of KMC and serve on 

such committees as may be required; (ii) ongoing quality improvement activities, such as audits, 

which will be conducted annually in the Department in order to evaluate and enhance the quality 

of patient care; and (iii) risk management activities designed to identify, evaluate and reduce the 

risk of patient injury associated with care.  Contractor shall ensure that the quality improvement 

program consists of the following integrated components: (i) professional development that 

provides continuous performance feedback that is benchmarked, evaluated, and rated 

individually and collectively; (ii) clinical standards that are evidence-based and grounded in 

industry best practices; (iii) performance improvement that is outcomes-focused and based on 

quality indicators/metrics with quarterly reporting of same; and (iv) customer satisfaction that is 

feedback/survey-driven and objectively and comparatively measured, tracked/trended, and 

analyzed.  The appropriate review mechanism will be applied in accordance with the provisions 

of the KMC medical staff bylaws, The Joint Commission, and applicable law. 

 

2.8 Nonexclusive Services.  Contractor understands and agrees that Authority will 

utilize the services of Contractor pursuant to the terms of this Agreement on a non-exclusive 

basis.  Contractor further agrees that Authority shall retain the option to enter into agreements 

with other organizations for purposes of securing the services, in its sole discretion. 

 

3. Obligations of Authority.  

  

3.1 Authority Designee.  Authority shall designate a primary contact, who will 

arrange for KMC staff assistance as may be required.   

 

3.2 Space.  KMC shall furnish for the use of Contractor such space and facilities as 

may be deemed necessary by KMC for the proper operation and conduct of the Department.  

KMC shall, in its sole discretion, determine the amount and type of space and facilities to be 

provided herein.  Contractor shall use the space and equipment solely for the performance of the 

services required under this Agreement.  Contractor shall not use such space or equipment for 

other business or personal use. 

  

3.3 Use Limitations on Space.  The use of any part of the space occupied by the 

Department for the general or private practice of medicine is prohibited.  Contractor shall use the 

items furnished under this Agreement only for the performance of services required by this 

Agreement.  This Agreement shall not be construed to be a lease to Contractor of any portion of 



4 

 

the Premises, and insofar as Contractor may use a portion of said Premises, Contractor does so as 

a licensee only, and Authority and KMC shall, at all times, have full and free access to the same. 

 

3.4 Equipment.  KMC shall furnish for the use of the Department such equipment as 

is deemed necessary by KMC for the proper operation and conduct of the Department consistent 

with community standards.  KMC shall keep and maintain this equipment in good order and 

repair and replace such equipment, as is reasonably necessary and subject to the usual purchasing 

practices of Authority and KMC and budget constraints.    

 

 3.5 Services and Supplies.  KMC shall provide or arrange for the provision of 

janitorial services, housekeeping services, laundry and utilities, together with such other hospital 

services, including medical records, administrative and engineering services, and expendable 

supplies as KMC deems necessary for the proper operation and conduct of the Department. 

 

 3.6 Control Retained in KMC.  In compliance with title 22, California Code of 

Regulations, section 70713 KMC will retain professional and administrative responsibility for 

services rendered under this Agreement.  Contractor shall apprise KMC of recommendations, 

plans for implementation and continuing assessment through dated and signed reports which 

shall be retained by KMC for follow-up action and evaluation of performance. 

 

4. Payment for Services.   

 

4.1 Compensation.  As consideration for the services provided by Contractor 

hereunder, Authority shall pay Contractor an annual fixed fee in the amount of $260,700 per year 

as follows: Contractor shall be entitled to receive two (2) payments per month, each payment 

being equal to $10,862.50, payable on or before the 10th day and the 20th day of each month 

during the term of this Agreement.  Invoices for payment shall be submitted in a form approved 

by Authority.  Invoices shall be sent to KMC for review and processing on or before the 1st day 

and 10th day of each month.   

 

 4.2 Call Coverage.  Authority shall pay Contractor for call coverage as follows: (i) 

Contractor shall be paid a fixed fee in the amount of $2,400 per 24-hour day for weekend and 

holiday call coverage assigned (Saturday and Sunday; designated Authority holidays only); (ii) 

Contractor shall be paid a fixed fee in the amount of $1,200 for every weekday night of call 

coverage assigned (Monday through Friday); and (iii) Contractor shall be paid a fixed fee in the 

amount of $500 for backup call coverage if called to come to the hospital. 

 

 4.3 Quality Bonus.  Upon satisfaction of the relevant criteria set forth below and 

subject to the other terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement, in addition to the fixed-fee 

compensation set forth in paragraph 4.1, Contractor shall be eligible to receive a quality bonus 

based on the following measures: 

 

4.3.1 Quality/Safety Measure(s).  Contractor shall be eligible to receive a 

quality bonus in an amount not to exceed $6,250 for the fiscal year commencing July 1, 

2018, and each fiscal year thereafter, if Contractor achieves certain quality/safety 

measure(s).  Measures shall be determined annually.  Measures shall be calculated within 



5 

 

60 days of the end of each fiscal year ending June 30.  If multiple measures are used (i.e., 

more than one measure annually), the annual bonus amount of $6,250 shall be divided by 

the total number of measures and the prorated amount paid if the target metric is 

achieved. 

 

4.3.2 Patient Satisfaction Measure(s).  Contractor shall be eligible to receive a 

quality bonus in an amount not to exceed $6,250 for the fiscal year commencing July 1, 

2018, and each fiscal year thereafter, if Contractor achieves certain patient satisfaction 

measure(s).  Measures shall be determined annually.  Measures shall be calculated within 

60 days of the end of each fiscal year ending June 30.  If multiple measures are used (i.e., 

more than one measure annually), the annual bonus amount of $6,250 shall be divided by 

the total number of measures and the prorated amount paid if the target metric is 

achieved. 

 

 4.4 Limitations on Compensation.  Except as expressly stated herein, Contractor shall 

receive no benefits from Authority or KMC, including without limitation, health benefits, sick 

leave, vacation, holidays, deferred compensation or retirement. 

 

 4.5 Maximum Payable.  The maximum payable under this Agreement shall not 

exceed $600,000 over the two-year term of this Agreement.   

 

4.6 Taxpayer Identification.  To ensure compensation is reported as paid to the proper 

party, Contractor will complete and execute IRS Form W-9 (Exhibit “B,” attached hereto and 

incorporated herein by this reference), which identifies the taxpayer identification number for 

Contractor. 

 

4.7 Professional Fee Billing.  KMC shall have the exclusive right to set, bill, collect 

and retain all fees, including professional fees, for all direct patient care services provided by 

Contractor to KMC patients during the term of this Agreement.  All professional fees generated 

by Contractor for services rendered to KMC patients during the Term of this Agreement, 

including both cash collections and accounts receivable, will be the sole and exclusive property 

of KMC, whether received by KMC or by Contractor and whether received during the term of 

this Agreement or anytime thereafter.  Contractor hereby assigns all rights to said fees and 

accounts to KMC and shall execute all documents required from time to time by KMC and 

otherwise fully cooperate with KMC to enable KMC to collect fees and accounts from patients 

and third-party payers. 

 

 4.8 High-risk Cesarean Deliveries.  Notwithstanding paragraph 4.7 to the contrary, 

Contractor shall have the exclusive right to bill, collect and retain all professional fees for high-

risk Cesarean deliveries provided by Contractor under this Agreement not to exceed 10 such 

deliveries per year. 

 

4.9 Managed Care Organizations.  For and on behalf of Contractor Authority shall 

have the sole and exclusive right and authority to enter into contractual relationships with 

HMOs, IPAs, PPOs, PHOs, employer groups, provider networks and other managed care 

organizations (collectively “Managed Care Organizations”).  Contractor shall provide the same 



6 

 

quality of care to patients from Managed Care Organizations as is provided to other KMC 

patients.  Upon request from Authority or KMC, Contractor shall execute Managed Care 

Organization documents as “provider” if deemed necessary or advisable by Authority.  

Contractor shall not contract with any Managed Care Organization without Authority’s prior 

written consent in each instance. 

 

5. Access to Books and Records.  Contractor shall make available, upon written request 

from Authority or KMC, the Secretary of Health and Human Services, the Comptroller General 

of the United States, or any other duly authorized agent or representative, this Agreement, and 

Contractor’s books, documents and records.  Contractor shall preserve and make available such 

books, documents and records for a period of seven (7) years after the termination or expiration 

of this Agreement.  If Contractor is requested to disclose books, documents or records pursuant 

to this section for any purpose, Contractor shall notify KMC of the nature and scope of the 

request, and Contractor shall make available, upon written request of KMC, all such books, 

documents or records.   

 

6. Anti-referral Laws.  Contractor acknowledges that he is subject to certain federal and 

state laws governing the referral of patients, which are in effect during the term of this 

Agreement.  These laws include (i) prohibitions on payments for referral or to induce the referral 

of patients, and (ii) the referral of patients by a physician for certain designated health care 

services to an entity with which the physician (or his or her immediate family) has a financial 

relationship (Cal. Business and Professions Code sections 650 et seq.; Cal. Labor Code sections 

139.3 and 139.31; section 1128B (b) of the Social Security Act; and section 1877 of the Social 

Security Act).  The parties expressly agree that nothing contained in this Agreement shall require 

either the referral of any patients to, or order of any goods or services from Contractor or KMC.  

Notwithstanding any unanticipated effect of any provision of this Agreement, neither party shall 

knowingly or intentionally conduct itself in such a manner as to violate the prohibition against 

fraud and abuse in connection with the Medicare and Medicaid programs (42 U.S.C. section 

1320a-7b). 

 

7. Assignment.  Contractor shall not assign, delegate, sublet, or transfer any interest in or 

duty under this Agreement.  Contractor shall not assign any money due or which becomes due to 

Contractor under this Agreement without the prior written approval of Authority. 

 

8.  Audits, Inspection and Retention of Records.  Contractor agrees to maintain and make 

available to Authority accurate books and records relative to all his activities under this 

Agreement.  Contractor shall permit Authority to audit, examine and make excerpts and 

transcripts from such records, and to conduct audits or reviews of all invoices, materials, records 

or personnel or other data related to all other matters covered by this Agreement.  Contractor 

shall maintain such data and records in an accessible location and condition for a period of not 

less than four (4) years from the date of final payment under this Agreement, or until after the 

conclusion of any audit, whichever occurs last.  The state of California or any federal agency 

having an interest in the subject of this Agreement shall have the same rights conferred upon 

Authority herein. 

 

 



7 

 

 

9. Authority to Bind Authority.  It is understood that Contractor, in his performance of 

any and all duties under this Agreement, has no authority to bind Authority to any agreements or 

undertakings. 

 

10. Captions.  The captions in this Agreement are solely for convenience of reference.  They 

are not a part of this Agreement and shall have no effect on its construction or interpretation.  

 

11. Change in Law.  In the event that a change in state or federal law or regulatory 

requirement (or the application thereof), any of which renders this Agreement illegal, impossible 

to perform, or commercially impracticable, the parties agree to negotiate immediately, in good 

faith, any necessary or appropriate amendments(s) to the terms of this Agreement.  If the parties 

fail to reach a mutually agreeable amendment within 30 days of such negotiation period, this 

Agreement shall automatically terminate at the end of such 30-day period. 

 

12. Choice of Law/Venue.  The parties hereto agree that the provisions of this Agreement 

will be construed pursuant to the laws of the state of California.  It is expressly acknowledged 

that this Agreement has been entered into and will be performed within the County of Kern.  

Should any suit or action be commenced to enforce or interpret the terms of this Agreement or 

any claim arising under it, it is expressly agreed that proper venue shall be in County of Kern, 

state of California.   

 

13. Compliance with Law.  Contractor shall observe and comply with all applicable 

Authority, local, state and federal laws, ordinances, rules and regulations now in effect or 

hereafter enacted, each of which is hereby made a part hereof and incorporated herein by 

reference. 

 

14. Compliance Program.  Contractor acknowledges that KMC has implemented a 

compliance program for the purpose of ensuring adherence to applicable federal and state laws, 

regulations and other standards.  Contractor agrees that in the course of performance of his duties 

described herein that he shall act, and cause his employees to act, in conformance with the 

policies set forth therein.  KMC shall make available such information relating to its compliance 

program as is appropriate to assist Contractor in adhering to the policies set forth in the 

compliance program.  Contractor and his employees shall participate in compliance training and 

education as reasonably requested by KMC.   

 

15. Confidentiality. 

 

15.1 Use and Disclosure Restrictions.  Neither party shall, without the written consent 

of the other, communicate confidential information of the other, designated in writing or 

identified in this Agreement as such, to any third party and shall protect such information from 

inadvertent disclosure to any third party in the same manner that the receiving party would 

protect its own confidential information.  The foregoing obligations will not restrict either party 

from disclosing confidential information of the other party: (i) pursuant to applicable law; (ii) 

pursuant to the order or requirement of a court, administrative agency, or other governmental 

body, on condition that the party required to make such a disclosure gives reasonable written 



8 

 

notice to the other party to contest such order or requirement; and (iii) on a confidential basis to 

its legal or financial advisors.   

 

15.2 Trade Secrets.  The parties acknowledge that each party, in connection with its 

business, has developed certain operating manuals, symbols, trademarks, trade names, service 

marks, designs, patient lists, procedures, processes, and other copyrighted, patented, 

trademarked, or legally protectable information which is confidential and proprietary to the party 

that constitute its trade secrets.  The parties shall not use any name, symbol, mark, or other 

proprietary information of the other party except as expressly permitted. 

 

15.3 Medical Records.  The parties agree to maintain the confidentiality of all medical 

records pertaining to the provision of services under this Agreement in accordance with 

applicable federal and state laws and regulations including, but not limited to, the California 

Confidentiality of Medical Records Information Act, codified at section 56.1 of the California 

Civil Code, California Evidence Code sections 1156 and 1157, and the Health Insurance 

Portability and Accountability Act of 1996 and its implementing regulations.   

 

 15.4 Medical Staff and Committee Records.  All records, files, proceedings and related 

information of Contractor, KMC and the medical staff and it committees pertaining to the 

evaluation and improvements of the quality of patient care at KMC shall be kept strictly 

confidential by Contractor.  Contractor shall not voluntarily disclose such confidential 

information, either orally or in writing, except as expressly required by law or pursuant to written 

authorization by KMC, which may be given or withheld in the sole discretion of KMC. 

 

15.5 Ownership of Records.  All documents, papers, notes, memoranda, computer files 

and other written or electronic records of any kind (“Documents”), in whatever form or format, 

assembled, prepared or utilized by Contractor during and in connection with this Agreement 

shall remain the property of Authority at all times.  Upon the expiration or termination of this 

Agreement, Contractor shall promptly deliver to Authority all such Documents, which have not 

already been provided to Authority in such form or format as Authority deems appropriate.  Such 

Documents shall be and will remain the property of Authority without restriction or limitation.  

Contractor may retain copies of the above described Documents but agrees not to disclose or 

discuss any information gathered, discovered, or generated in any way through this Agreement 

without the express written permission of Authority. 

 

 15.6 Non-disparagement.  Each party agrees that it shall not make or cause to be made, 

any written (including, but not limited to, any emails, internet postings, remarks or statements) or 

verbal assertions, statements or other communications regarding the other party’s business or 

each other which may be in any manner whatsoever defamatory, detrimental or unfavorable to 

such other party.  Each party agrees that these non-disparagement covenants shall survive the 

termination of this Agreement. 

 

16. Conflict of Interest.   Contractor covenants that he has no interest and that he will not 

acquire any interest, direct or indirect, that represents a financial conflict of interest under state 

law or that would otherwise conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of his 

services hereunder.  Contractor further covenants that in the performance of this Agreement no 



9 

 

person having any such interests shall be employed.  It is understood and agreed that if such a 

financial interest does exist at the inception of this Agreement, Authority may immediately 

terminate this Agreement by giving written notice thereof.   

 

17. Consent.  Wherever in this Agreement the consent or approval of one party is required to 

an act of the other party, such consent or approval shall not be unreasonably withheld or delayed. 

 

18. Construction.  To the fullest extent allowed by law, the provisions of this Agreement 

shall be construed and given effect in a manner that avoids any violation of statute, ordinance, 

regulation, or law.  The parties covenant and agree that in the event that any provision of this 

Agreement is held by a court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or unenforceable, the 

remainder of the provisions hereof shall remain in full force and effect and shall in no way be 

affected, impaired, or invalidated thereby.  Contractor and Authority acknowledge that they have 

each contributed to the making of this Agreement and that, in the event of a dispute over the 

interpretation of this Agreement, the language of the Agreement will not be construed against 

one party in favor of the other.  Contractor and Authority acknowledge that they have each had 

an adequate opportunity to consult with counsel in the negotiation and preparation of this 

Agreement.  

 

19. Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed simultaneously in any number of 

counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original but all of which together shall constitute 

one and the same instrument. 

 

20. Disqualified Persons.   The parties mutually represent and warrant to one another that 

they and their respective representatives are not: (i) currently excluded, debarred, or otherwise 

ineligible to participate in the federal health care programs as defined in 42 U.S.C. section 

1320a-7b-(f) (the “Federal health care programs”) and/or present on the exclusion database of 

the Office of the Inspector General (“OIG”) or the Government Services Administration 

(“GSA”); (ii) convicted of a criminal offense related to the provision of health care items or 

services but have not yet been excluded, debarred, or otherwise declared ineligible to participate 

in the Federal health care programs; or (iii) debarred, suspended, excluded or disqualified by any 

federal governmental agency or department or otherwise declared ineligible from receiving 

federal contracts or federally approved subcontracts or from receiving federal financial and 

nonfinancial assistance and benefits.  This shall be an ongoing representation and warranty 

during the term of this Agreement and a party shall immediately notify the other party of any 

change in the status of any of the representations and/or warranties set forth in this section.  Any 

breach of this section shall give the non-breaching party the right to terminate this Agreement 

immediately upon written notice. 

 

21. Enforcement of Remedies.  No right or remedy herein conferred on or reserved to 

Authority is exclusive of any other right or remedy herein or by law or equity provided or 

permitted, but each shall be cumulative of every other right or remedy given hereunder or now or 

hereafter existing by law or in equity or by statute or otherwise, and may be enforced 

concurrently or from time to time. 

 



10 

 

22. Immigration Compliance.  Contractor shall comply with all provisions of immigration 

law with respect to hiring, recruiting or referring for employment persons whose authorization 

for employment in the United States has been verified, and shall provide KMC with a copy of 

such verification required in 8 USCA section 1324a.  Contractor agrees to indemnify, defend, 

and hold harmless Authority, its agents, officers, and employees, from any liability, damages, or 

causes of action arising out of Contractor’s failure to comply with this section 22. 

 

23. Indemnification and Hold Harmless.  Authority agrees to assume liability for and 

indemnify and hold Contractor harmless from any and all claims, losses, expenses, costs, actions, 

settlements, attorneys’ fees and judgments incurred by Contractor or for which Contractor 

becomes liable to pay, arising out of or related to the services rendered (including without 

limitation, those services described in section 2 and Exhibit “A” hereof) or which a third party 

alleges should have been rendered by Contractor on behalf of Authority or KMC pursuant to this 

Agreement.  The obligation of Authority under this section shall arise as to all services rendered 

or which a third party alleges should have been rendered by Contractor on behalf of Authority or 

KMC on and after April 1, 2018 and prior to termination or expiration of this Agreement.  This 

section 23 shall survive termination or expiration of this Agreement and shall apply to all claims 

made during or after the termination or expiration of this Agreement, which allegedly arise out of 

services rendered or which allegedly should have been rendered by Contractor during the term of 

this Agreement; provided, however, that the provisions of this section shall not apply to any 

services rendered at any location other than KMC without approval by the Kern County Hospital 

Authority Board of Governors and, provided further, that Authority shall have no duty or 

obligation to defend, indemnify or hold Contractor harmless for any conduct or misconduct 

found to be intentional, willful, grossly negligent, or criminal. 

 

24. Independent Contractor.  In the performance of the services under this Agreement, 

Contractor shall be, and acknowledges that Contractor is in fact and law, an independent 

contractor and not an agent or employee of Authority.  Contractor has and retains the right to 

exercise full supervision and control over the manner and methods of providing services to 

Authority under this Agreement.  Contractor retains full supervision and control over the 

employment, direction, compensation and discharge of all persons assisting Contractor in the 

provision of services under this Agreement.  With respect to Contractor’s employees, if any, 

Contractor shall be solely responsible for payment of wages, benefits and other compensation, 

compliance with all occupational safety, welfare and civil rights laws, tax withholding and 

payment of employment taxes whether federal, state or local, and compliance with any and all 

other laws regulating employment. 

 

25. Informal Dispute Resolution.  Controversies between the parties with respect to this 

Agreement, or the rights of either party, or with respect to any transaction contemplated by this 

Agreement, shall be resolved, to the extent possible, by informal meetings and discussions 

among appropriate representatives of the parties. 

 

26. Insurance.  With respect to performance of work under this Agreement, Contractor shall 

maintain and shall require all of its subcontractors, consultants, and other agents to maintain, 

insurance as described in Exhibit “C,” attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference. 
 

 



11 

 

 

27. Modifications of Agreement.  This Agreement may be modified in writing only, signed 

by the parties in interest at the time of the modification. 

 

28. No Third Party Beneficiaries.  It is expressly understood and agreed that the 

enforcement of this Agreement and all rights of action relating to such enforcement, shall be 

strictly reserved to Authority and Contractor.  Nothing contained in this Agreement shall give or 

allow any claim or right of action whatsoever by any other third person.  It is the express 

intention of Authority and Contractor that any such person or entity, other than Authority or 

Contractor, receiving services or benefits under this Agreement shall be deemed an incidental 

beneficiary only. 

 

29. Non-appropriation.  Authority reserves the right to terminate this Agreement in the 

event insufficient funds are appropriated or budgeted for this Agreement in any fiscal year.  

Upon such termination, Authority will be released from any further financial obligation to 

Contractor, except for services performed prior to the date of termination or any liability due to 

any default existing at the time this clause is exercised.  Contractor will be given 30 days’ prior 

written notice in the event that Authority requires such an action. 

 

30. Non-collusion Covenant.  Contractor represents and agrees that he has in no way entered 

into any contingent fee arrangement with any firm or person concerning the obtaining of this 

Agreement with Authority.  Contractor has received from Authority no incentive or special 

payments, nor considerations, not related to the provision of services under this Agreement. 

 

31. Nondiscrimination.  Neither Contractor, nor any officer, agent, employee, servant or 

subcontractor of Contractor shall discriminate in the treatment or employment of any individual 

or groups of individuals on the grounds of race, color, ancestry, national origin, religion, sex, 

actual or perceived sexual orientation, marital status, age, pregnancy, medical condition, 

handicap or other prohibited basis, either directly, indirectly or through contractual or other 

arrangements. 

 

32. Non-waiver.  No covenant or condition of this Agreement can be waived except by the 

written consent of Authority.  Forbearance or indulgence by Authority in any regard whatsoever 

shall not constitute a waiver of the covenant or condition to be performed by Contractor.  

Authority shall be entitled to invoke any remedy available to Authority under this Agreement or 

by law or in equity despite said forbearance or indulgence. 

 

33. Notices.  Notices to be given by one party to the other under this Agreement shall be 

given in writing by personal delivery, by certified mail, return receipt requested, or express 

delivery service at the addresses specified below.  Notices delivered personally shall be deemed 

received upon receipt; mailed or expressed notices shall be deemed received four (4) days after 

deposit.  A party may change the address to which notice is to be given by giving notice as 

provided above. 

 

 

 



12 

 

 

Notice to Contractor: Notice to Authority: 

  

Randolph Fok, M.D. 

2330 Truxtun Avenue, Suite A 

Bakersfield, California 93301 

Kern Medical Center 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue 

Bakersfield, California 93301 

Attn.:  Chief Executive Officer 

 

34. Signature Authority.  Each party represents that they have full power and authority to 

enter into and perform this Agreement, and the person(s) signing this Agreement on behalf of 

each party has been properly authorized and empowered to enter into this Agreement. 

 

35. Sole Agreement.  This Agreement, including all attachments hereto, contains the entire 

agreement between the parties relating to the services, rights, obligations and covenants 

contained herein and assumed by the parties respectively.  No inducements, representations or 

promises have been made, other than those recited in this Agreement.  No oral promise, 

modification, change or inducement shall be effective or given any force or effect. 

 

36. Termination.   

 

36.1 Termination without Cause.  Either party may terminate this Agreement, without 

penalty or cause, upon 30 days’ prior written notice to the other party.   

 

36.2 Immediate Termination.   Notwithstanding the foregoing, Authority shall have the 

right to terminate this Agreement effective immediately after giving written notice to Contractor 

for any of the following reasons: (i) Contractor does not have the proper credentials, experience 

or skill to perform the required services under this Agreement; (ii) the issuance of a final order of 

any governmental agency or court that has competent jurisdiction over the parties, which order 

requires the termination of this Agreement; (iii) an unauthorized use or disclosure of confidential 

or proprietary information by Contractor which causes material harm to Authority or KMC; (iv) 

the breach of any federal or state law or regulatory rule or regulation or condition of 

accreditation or certification; (v) the loss or threatened loss of Authority’s ability to participate in 

any federal or state health care program, including Medicare or Medi-Cal, due to the actions of 

Contractor; (vi) commission of any unlawful or intentional act by Contractor which would be 

detrimental to the reputation, character or standing of Authority or KMC; or (vii) commission of 

a material act of dishonesty, fraud, embezzlement, misappropriation or financial dishonesty by 

Contractor against Authority or KMC. 

 

37. Effect of Termination.   

 

37.1 Payment Obligations.  In the event of termination of this Agreement for any 

reason, Authority shall have no further obligation to pay for any services rendered or expenses 

incurred by Contractor after the effective date of the termination, and Contractor shall be entitled 

to receive compensation for services satisfactorily rendered, calculated on a prorated basis up to 

the effective date of termination.   

 



13 

 

 37.2 Vacate Premises.  Upon expiration or earlier termination of this Agreement, 

Contractor shall immediately vacate KMC, removing at such time any and all personal property 

of Contractor.  Authority may remove and store, at Contractor’s expense, any personal property 

that Contractor has not so removed. 

  

 37.3 No Interference.  Following the expiration or earlier termination of this 

Agreement, Contractor shall not do anything or cause any person to do anything that might 

interfere with any efforts by Authority to contract with any other individual or entity for the 

provision of services or to interfere in any way with any relationship between Authority and any 

provider that may replace Contractor. 

 

 37.4 No Hearing Rights.  Termination of this Agreement by Authority or KMC for any 

reason shall not provide Contractor the right to a fair hearing or the other rights more particularly 

set forth in the KMC medical staff bylaws. 

 

38. Time of Essence.  Time is hereby expressly declared to be of the essence of this 

Agreement and of each and every provision hereof, and each such provision is hereby made and 

declared to be a material, necessary and essential part of this Agreement. 

 

39. Liability of Authority.  The liabilities or obligations of Authority with respect to its 

activities pursuant to this Agreement shall be the liabilities or obligations solely of Authority and 

shall not be or become the liabilities or obligations of the County of Kern or any other entity, 

including the state of California. 

 

[Signatures follow on next page] 

 



14 

 

IN WITNESS TO THE FOREGOING, the parties have executed this Agreement as of 

the day and year first written above. 

 

CONTRACTOR 

 

 

By_______________________ 

    Randolph Fok, M.D. 

     

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 

 

 

By_______________________ 

    Russell V. Judd 

    Chief Executive Officer 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

LEGAL SERVICES DEPARTMENT 

 

 

By_______________________ 

    VP & General Counsel 

    Kern County Hospital Authority 

 

 
Agreement.Fok.031518 

 

      

 

 

Date _______________________ 

          

 

 

 

 

Date _______________________ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Date _______________________ 

  

 

  



15 

 

EXHIBIT “A” 

DESCRIPTION OF SERVICES 

Randolph Fok, M.D. 

 

Contractor shall provide services, as assigned by the Department chair, as follows: 

 

1. Serve as Chief, Division of Maternal-Fetal Medicine. 

  

2. Provide coverage for high-risk OB clinic at KMC to see, manage and treat patient, 

interact with Department staff and train resident physicians and medical students; 

supervise resident physicians and medical students during all assigned clinical activity. 

 

3. Provide regular and scheduled rounds with resident physicians and Department staff to 

discuss patients of special interest and needs. 

 

4. Give lectures to Department staff and resident physicians on subjects in maternal-fetal 

medicine, prenatal diagnoses and obstetrics. 

 

5. Design and participate in clinical research projects; assist resident physicians in designing 

and conducting clinical research. 

 

6. Consult with Department staff and assist in the management of in-house obstetrical 

patients. 

 

7. Perform ultrasound examinations, genetics consultations, and other consultations on 

patients referred to KMC. 

 

8. Provide training to resident physicians in the performance and interpretation of 

obstetrical ultrasound. 

 

9. Participate in Department and hospital quality improvement programs as required by the 

KMC medical staff bylaws, rules, regulations and policies. 

 

10. Make every effort to attend Department staff meetings, the annual medical staff meeting, 

and committee meetings assigned by the president of the medical staff. 

 

11. Be available to provide a minimum of one weekend and one weeknight of call coverage 

per month. 

 

 

[Intentionally left blank] 

  



16 

 

EXHIBIT “B” 

 

IRS FORM W-9 

 

 

 

  



17 

 

EXHIBIT “C” 

INSURANCE 

 

With respect to performance of work under this Agreement, Contractor shall maintain and shall 

require all of its subcontractors, consultants, and other agents to maintain insurance as described 

below unless such insurance has been expressly waived in writing by Authority.  Any 

requirement for insurance to be maintained after completion of the work shall survive the 

termination or expiration of this Agreement.   

 

Authority reserves the right to review any and all of the required insurance policies and/or 

endorsements, but has no obligation to do so.  Failure to demand evidence of full compliance 

with the insurance requirements set forth in this Agreement or failure to identify any insurance 

deficiency shall not relieve Contractor from, nor be construed or deemed a waiver of, its 

obligation to maintain the required insurance at all times during the performance of this 

Agreement. 

 

 1. Workers’ Compensation and Employers Liability Insurance:  

 

(a) Required if Contractor has employees.  If Contractor currently has no employees, 

Contractor’s written confirmation of such will be required before execution of this 

Agreement.  If Contractor engages any employees during the term of this 

Agreement or any extensions thereof, Contractor agrees to obtain the specified 

Workers’ Compensation and Employers Liability insurance.   

(b) Workers’ Compensation insurance with statutory limits as required by the California 

Labor Code.   

(c) Employers Liability with limits of $1,000,000 per Accident; $1,000,000 Disease per 

employee; $1,000,000 Disease per policy.   

(d) Waiver of Subrogation: The Workers’ Compensation policy shall be endorsed with a 

waiver of subrogation in favor of Authority for all work performed by Contractor, its 

employees, agents and subcontractors. 

(e) Required Evidence of Insurance: Certificate of Insurance. 

 

2. General Liability Insurance: 

 

(a) Commercial General Liability Insurance on a standard occurrence form, no less 

broad than Insurance Services Office (ISO) form CG 00 01. 

(b) Minimum Limits:  $1,000,000 per Occurrence; $2,000,000 General Aggregate; 

$2,000,000 Products/Completed Operations Aggregate.  The required limits may be 

provided by a combination of General Liability Insurance and Commercial 

Umbrella Liability Insurance.  If Contractor maintains higher limits than the 

specified minimum limits, Authority requires and shall be entitled to coverage for 

the higher limits maintained by Contractor. 

(c) If Contractor has no Owned automobiles, the General Liability policy shall include 

Non-Owned and Hired Automobile Liability in the amount of $1,000,000 combined 

single limit per accident. 

 



18 

 

(d) Any deductible or self-insured retention shall be shown on the Certificate of 

Insurance.  If the deductible or self-insured retention exceeds $25,000 it must be 

approved in advance by Authority.  Contractor is responsible for any deductible or 

self-insured retention and shall fund it upon Authority’s written request, regardless 

of whether Contractor has a claim against the insurance or is named as a party in 

any action involving Authority. 

(e) Authority shall be named as an additional insured for liability arising out of 

operations by or on behalf of Contractor in the performance of this Agreement.  See 

section 5 below for full Additional Insured wording. 

(f) The insurance provided to Authority as an additional insured shall be primary to 

and non-contributory with any insurance or self-insurance program maintained by 

Authority. 

(g) The policy definition of “insured contract” shall include assumptions of liability 

arising out of both ongoing operations and the products-completed operations 

hazard (broad form contractual liability coverage including the “f” definition of 

insured contract in ISO form CG 00 01, or equivalent).  

(h) The policy shall cover inter-insured suits between Authority and Contractor and 

include a “separation of insureds” or “severability” clause which treats each insured 

separately.  

(i) Required Evidence of Insurance: (i) Copy of the additional insured endorsement or 

policy language granting additional insured status; and (ii) Certificate of Insurance. 

 

3. Automobile Liability Insurance: 

 

(a) Minimum Limits: $1,000,000 combined single limit per accident for bodily injury 

and property damage. 

(b) Insurance shall apply to all Owned autos.  If Contractor currently owns no autos, 

Contractor agrees to obtain such insurance should any autos be acquired during the 

term of this Agreement or any extensions thereof. 

(c) Insurance shall include coverage for Non-Owned and Hired autos.  (See 

requirements in section 1(c) above if there is no separate Automobile Liability 

coverage.) 

(d) Authority shall be named as an additional insured for liability arising out of 

operations by or on behalf of Contractor in the performance of this Agreement.  See 

section 5 for full Additional Insured wording.  

(e) Required Evidence of Insurance:  Certificate of Insurance. 

 

4. Standards for Insurance Companies: Insurers shall have an A.M. Best’s rating of at least 

A;VII. 

 

5. Additional Insured Wording: “Kern County Hospital Authority, its officers, officials, 

employees and volunteers” are to be named as Additional Insureds as per each section 

where noted above.   

 

6. Claims Made Policies: If any of the required policies provide coverage on a claims-made 

basis: 



19 

 

(a) The Retroactive Date must be shown and must be before the Effective Date of the 

Agreement or the beginning of contract work. 

(b) Insurance must be maintained and evidence of insurance must be provided for at 

least five (5) years after completion of the contract work. 

(c) If coverage is canceled or non-renewed, and not replaced with another claims-made 

policy form with a Retroactive Date prior to the contract effective date, Contractor 

must purchase “extended reporting” coverage for a minimum of five (5) years after 

completion of the contract work. 

 

7. Documentation: 

 

(a) The Certificate of Insurance must include the following reference: “Agreement for 

Professional Services.”  
(b) All required Evidence of Insurance shall be submitted prior to the execution of this 

Agreement.  Contractor agrees to maintain current Evidence of Insurance on file 

with Authority for the entire term of this Agreement and any additional periods if 

specified in sections 1, 2 or 3 above. 

(c) The name and address for the Certificates of Insurance and Additional Insured 

endorsements is: Kern County Hospital Authority, c/o Kern Medical Center, 1700 

Mount Vernon Avenue, Bakersfield, California 93306.                                                                     

(d) Required Evidence of Insurance shall be submitted for any renewal or replacement 

of a policy that already exists, at least 10 days before expiration or other termination 

of the existing policy. 

(e) Contractor shall provide immediate written notice if: (i) any of the required 

insurance policies is terminated; (ii) the limits of any of the required policies are 

reduced; or (iii) the deductible or self-insured retention is increased.   

(f) Upon written request, certified copies of required insurance policies must be 

provided to Authority within 30 days. 

 

8. Policy Obligations:  Contractor’s indemnity and other obligations shall not be limited by 

the foregoing insurance requirements. 

 

9. Material Breach:  If Contractor fails to maintain the insurance required by this 

Agreement, it shall be deemed a material breach of this Agreement.  Authority, at its sole 

option, may terminate this Agreement and obtain damages from Contractor resulting from 

said breach.  Alternatively, Authority may purchase the required insurance, and without 

further notice to Contractor, Authority may deduct from sums due to Contractor any 

premium costs advanced by Authority for such insurance.  These remedies shall be in 

addition to any other remedies available to Authority. 

 

 

[Intentionally left blank] 

 



 
 
 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 
A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS 
KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 

 

March 21, 2018 
 

Subject:  Comments Regarding Budget Variances for Operating Expenses – January 2018  
 

Recommended Action:  Receive and File 
 

Summary: 
 

The following items have budget variances for the month of January 2018:  
 
Gross Operating Revenue: 
Gross operating revenue for the month of  January 2018 has a $3.9 million unfavorable variance due to  lower 
than  expected  patient  volume  for  the month.    Average  daily  census  for  the month was  130,  compared  to  a 
budget of 135.  The corresponding patient days were 4,020, compared to a budget of 4,200.  
 
Indigent Funding: 
Each  month,  Kern Medical  only  recognizes  ninety‐five  percent  of  the  total  accrued  amount  receivable  from 
indigent  funding.    This  is  a  conservative  approach  that  reserves  five  percent  of  the  total  receivable  indigent 
funding to account for the possibility that some funding could be taken back by the funding sources at a later 
time  due  to  changes  in  calculations  or  in  the  method  that  funds  are  allocated  among  California’s  public 
hospitals. 
 
Other Revenue: 
Other revenue has an unfavorable budget variance for January due to an adjustment for over accrued Medical 
Education Tuition in prior months. 
  
Registry Nurses: 
Registry nurses expense has an unfavorable budget variance on both a month to date and a year to date basis.  
Kern  Medical  continues  to  rely  on  contracted  nurse  staffing  to  supplement  the  nursing  departments  while 
aggressively trying to recruit full time employed nurses. 
 
Other Professional Fees: 
Professional fees have a favorable budget variance for the month of January due in part to the reclassification of 
Cerner service fees to the Cerner capital project.  There are also significant savings each month due to the fact 
that AMF Media is no longer engaged for marketing and advertising. 
 
Supplies Expense: 
Supplies expense has an unfavorable budget variance  for  the month of  January due  to mainly  to higher  than 
average  pharmaceutical  expenses.    The  expansion  of  Kern Medical  clinics  is  a main  driver  of  the  increase  in 
pharmaceutical expenses. A year‐to‐date inventory true‐up adjustment also contributed to the January variance. 



Page 2 of 2 

 

 

 
Purchased Services: 
Purchased services have an unfavorable budget variance for January because of being under accrued for Health 
Advocates  expenses  in  prior  months  while  contract  terms  with  the  vendor  were  being  negotiated.    Health 
Advocates are engaged  to assist  the Admitting  staff with  checking Medi‐Cal  eligibility of  patients and helping 
patients qualify for Medi‐Cal.  They have been very successful and their efforts have resulted in a large increase 
of Kern Medical patients qualifying for Medi‐Cal.  After contract terms were recently finalized, Health Advocates 
billed Kern Medical for five months of services.  These invoices, totaling $1.6 million, were received and included 
in purchased services expenses for January.     
 
Other Expenses: 
Other  expenses  are  slightly  over  budget  for  the month of  January  due  to  an  increase  in  office  rent  expense.  
There are several new leases for office and clinic space that were not included in the fiscal year 2018 budget. 
 

 



BOARD OF GOVERNORS’ FINANCIAL REPORT
KERN MEDICAL – JANUARY 2018

MARCH 2018



Slide 1



Slide 2



Slide 3



Slide 4



Slide 5



Slide 6



Slide 7



Slide 8



Slide 9



 
 

Owned and Operated by the Kern County Hospital Authority 
A Designated Public Hospital 

1700 Mount Vernon Avenue | Bakersfield, CA 93306 | (661) 326-2000 | KernMedical.com 

 

BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY REGULAR MEETING 

 
 

March 21, 2018 
 

Subject:  Kern County Hospital Authority, Chief Executive Officer Report 
 

Recommended Action:  Receive and File 
 

Summary: 
 
The Chief Executive Officer has provided the attached 3‐month trend Analysis: Volume and Strategic 
Indicators for Kern Medical 



BOARD OF GOVERNORS’ VOLUMES REPORT
KERN MEDICAL – JANUARY 2018

MARCH 2018



Slide 1



Slide 2



Slide 3



Slide 4



Slide 5



Slide 6





 
From: Colleen McGauley [mailto:cmcgauley@kerncasa.org]  
Sent: Monday, March 12, 2018 3:36 PM 
To: Rubigler@kern.org 
Cc: Mona Allen <Mona.Allen@kernmedical.com>; Russell Judd <Russell.Judd@kernmedical.com>; Karen 
Barnes <Karen.Barnes@kernmedical.com>; Kathleen Krause <krausek@kerncounty.com>; 
alsopr@kerncounty.com; Amir Berjis <Amir.Berjis@kernmedical.com>; Christina Sistrunk 
<cssistrunk@aeraenergy.com>; Nancy Lawson <Lawsonn@kerncounty.com>; Phil McLaughlin 
<p.mclaughlin@vrbank.com>; Russell Bigler <rubigler@kern.org>; Stephen Pelz <spelz@kernha.org>; 
Colleen McGauley <cmcgauley@kerncasa.org> 
Subject: RE: Notice of my intent to resign from Kern Medical Board of Governors 
 
Hi Russell and my fellow board members.  
 
I am sorry to officially announce that I will not be seeking another term on the Board of Governors of 
Kern Medical.  I hope that I have been of assistance in my time on the board, as I have found it to be 
most enjoyable.  It truly has been an honor to serve on the Board, and I am so proud of Russell Judd’s 
leadership, his executive team, dear Karen, and all that serve the medical needs of our community.   
 
My term is set to expire in June 2018, and the June meeting will be my last.  
 
Thanks so very much, 
 
Colleen  
 

 
 
Colleen McGauley 
Executive Director 
CASA of Kern County 
1717 Columbus Street 
Bakersfield, CA 93305 
661.631.2272- Office   661.321.4860- Direct Line 

 

https://www.active.com/bakersfield-ca/running/distance-running-races/casa-superhero-run-2018?int=


 
 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

PUBLIC STATEMENT REGARDING CLOSED SESSION 
 

Health and Safety Code Section 101855(j)(2) 
 
On the recommendation of the Chief Executive Officer, the Board of Governors will hold 
a closed session on March 21, 2018, to discharge its responsibility to evaluate and 
improve the quality of care rendered by health facilities and health practitioners. The 
closed session involves: 
 
 
   X    Request for Closed Session regarding peer review of health practitioners (Health 
and Safety Code Section 101855(j)(2)) –   
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 



 
 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

PUBLIC STATEMENT REGARDING CLOSED SESSION 
 

Health and Safety Code Section 101855(e)(1) 
 
On the recommendation of the Chief Executive Officer, the Board of Governors will hold 
a closed session on March 21, 2018, the premature disclosure of which would create a 
substantial probability of depriving the authority of a substantial economic benefit or 
opportunity.  The closed session involves: 
 
 
   X    Request for Closed Session for the purpose of discussion or taking action on 
authority trade secrets (Health and Safety Code Section 101855(e)(1)) –  
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 



 
 

KERN COUNTY HOSPITAL AUTHORITY 
BOARD OF GOVERNORS 

PUBLIC STATEMENT REGARDING CLOSED SESSION 
 

 
On the recommendation of the Chief Executive Officer, the Board of Governors will hold 
a closed session on March 21, 2018, to consider: 
 
 
   X    PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION - Title: Chief Executive 
Officer (Government Code Section 54957) –     
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 


